



# **Request for Bids**

RFB #23-001

Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation
Stone for Rip Rap

September 2022

# **Table of Contents**

Notice to Bidders	3
General Information and Instructions	4
Execution of Agreement	11
Scope of Work	13
Bid Proposal	15
Bid Bond	20
Bid Opening	22
Vendor Certification to State Law	23
Attestations	25
Affidavits	26
Bonding Company Information	31
Non-Collusion Affidavit	32
Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification	34
Conflict of Interest Questionnaire Form	40
Prevailing Wage Rates	42
General Conditions	53
Special Conditions of the Agreement	67
Agreement	70
Performance Bond	72
Payment Bond	74

## **Notice to Bidders**

The Sabine River Authority of Texas (SRA-TX) and the Sabine River Authority, State of Louisiana (SRA-LA), acting jointly as Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation (TBPJO), "Owner", is seeking bids for Stone for Rip Rap at the Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Office (TBPJO). Sealed bids are to be received in the office of the Regional Manager, Sabine River Authority of Texas (SRA-TX) Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Office, 450 Spur 135, Burkeville, TX 75932 for response to this request for bid, until **2:00 p.m. on October 20, 2022**. Bids will, immediately thereafter, be publicly opened and read aloud.

Bids must be submitted and received no later than the opening date and time specified above. Any Bid received later than the specified time will not be considered and will be returned unopened. The Owner is not responsible for ensuring the delivery of Bids to our offices. Bids shall be sealed and clearly marked, "Request for Bid – TBPJO Stone for Rip Rap (RFB #23-001)."

Mail Bids to:

Regional Manager

TBPJO Office

450 Spur 135

Burkeville, TX 75932

OR

Deliver Bids to:

Regional Manager

TBPJO Office

450 Spur 135

Burkeville, TX 75932

A pre-bid meeting will NOT be held for this solicitation. All questions can be forwarded to the provided contact information below.

The Owner reserves the right to adopt the most advantageous interpretation of the bids submitted in the case of ambiguity or lack of clearness in stating proposal prices, to reject any or all bids, and/or waive any formalities.

Contract documents may be obtained from (1) SRA-TX Authority General Office, 12777 Hwy. 87 N., Orange, TX or (2) Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Office, 450 Spur 135, Burkeville, TX or (3) by download from <a href="www.sratx.org">www.sratx.org</a> under doing business "bid opportunities" or <a href="www.civcast.com">www.civcast.com</a> under project "Sabine River Authority of Texas – TBPJO Stone Rip Rap" or (4) by email request to purchasing@sratx.org. Parties requesting sets to be mailed shall pay all charges involved.

Questions regarding contract documents may be emailed to <a href="mailto:purchasing@sratx.org">purchasing@sratx.org</a> or directed to Stephanie Stanley at 409.746.2192.

## **General Information and Instructions**

This Request for Bid is to provide for Stone for Rip Rap at the Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Office (TBPJO) for the Sabine River Authority of Texas (SRA-TX) and the Sabine River Authority, State of Louisiana (SRA-LA), acting jointly as Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation (TBPJO), "Owner", at the Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Office in Newton County, Texas. A detailed scope of work and specifications are provided later in this package.

Below is the calendar of events associated with this request:

Date	Description
September 22, 2022	First publication date for Notice to
	Bidders
September 29, 2022	Second publication date for Notice to
	Bidders
October 06, 2022	Third publication date for Notice to
	Bidders
October 11, 2022	Deadline to submit questions or
	request additional information
October 13, 2022	Responses to questions distributed as
	an addendum to the bid package
October 20, 2022	Bids will be opened and read out loud
	at
	Toledo Bend Project Joint
	Operation Office
	450 Spur 135
	Burkeville, TX 75932
October 2022	Anticipated time frame for delivery of
	Stone for Rip Rap

At the Sabine River Authority of Texas and the Sabine River Authority, State of Louisiana, our goal is to purchase goods and services that are determined to be the best value to meet our business needs. We support open, fair, and unrestricted competition in selecting products and services with equal opportunity provided to all qualified parties including small business enterprises, Historically Underutilized Businesses, and Disadvantaged Business enterprises.

## **Preparation of Bids**

Sealed bids shall be prepared and submitted in compliance with the specifications outlined in this Request for Bid package and the Notice to Bidders. All blank places on the Bid Proposal form must be filled in as noted, in ink (except for price extensions and totals), and no changes shall be made in the phraseology of the forms or of the items mentioned therein. No changes shall be made in any prices which may be prescribed for specific bid items.

All lump sum and unit prices must be stated in both words and figures; however, do not extend your unit prices. That function will be performed by SRA-TX. If you extend the unit price bid, the extension amount will be ignored in determining the low bidder.

In case of any discrepancy between the written amounts and the figures, the written amounts shall govern. For those items of the proposal containing two or more alternate materials, equipment, or methods, the Bidder will select the material, equipment, or method bid by crossing out the remaining materials, equipment, or method, or by listing, circling, or checking the selected method if so indicated. Any Bid may be deemed irregular which contains any omission, erasure, alteration, addition, irregularity of any kind, or item not called for, or which does not contain prices set opposite to each of the several items in the Bid Proposal or in which any of the prices are obviously unbalanced or which shall in any manner fail to conform to the conditions set forth in this request for bid. No qualifying statements shall be included in the Bid Proposal, or in an accompanying letter, unless specifically called for. Such statements will be cause for rejection of the Bid.

To be valid, all Bids must be manually signed in ink by an authorized person in the blank space provided on the Bid Proposal form. By such signature, the Bidder agrees to strictly abide by the terms, conditions, and scope of work herein. To ensure consideration, the Bid must be enclosed in a sealed envelope and labeled as described in the Notice to Bidders. The Bid shall be accompanied by the required information as indicated in this Bid package.

## **Interpretation of Contract Documents, Technical Specifications, and Drawings**

Bidders desiring further information or interpretation of the contract documents, technical specifications, and drawings must make request for such information in writing to the purchasing representative. The email address to submit these questions is: purchasing@sratx.org. Such requests should be received five (5) days prior to the date for the Bid opening. The purchasing representative will direct any inquiries to the appropriate Owner personnel, and any answers to such requests will be given in writing to all Bidders, in addendum form, and all addenda will be bound and made a part of the contract. No other explanation or interpretation will be considered official or binding. Should a Bidder find discrepancies in, or omissions from the contract documents, technical specifications, or drawings, or should he be in doubt as to their meaning, he should at once notify the purchasing representative in order that a written addendum may be sent to all Bidders. It is the responsibility of the Bidders to know if they have received all such addenda, complete files of which will be maintained at both the Authority General Office and the Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Office.

## **Examination of Contract Documents and Site**

In preparation of the Bid for the project, consideration must be taken to examine contract documents, make observations and investigations, and correlate knowledge and observations with the requirements set forth such as:

- a. Read the contract documents and related technical data and reports thoroughly. Use the complete set of contract documents in preparing bids. Assume responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of partial or incomplete contract documents.
- b. Visit the site to become familiar with general, local, and site conditions that may affect cost, progress, or performance of the work in any manner.
- c. Become familiar with federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations affecting cost, progress, or performance of work.

Surveys and investigation reports of latent physical conditions at the site, or conditions or situations affecting the design of the project used in preparing the contract documents are referenced in the supplementary conditions.

- a. These reports are available for information only and the OWNER does not guarantee their accuracy or that any opinions expressed in the report are correct.
- b. Make additional surveys and investigations as necessary to determine the bid price for performance of the work in compliance with the terms of the contract documents before submitting a bid.
- c. The cost for these investigations is to be paid by the bidders.

Acknowledge sole responsibility for job site safety, including trench excavation and confined space entry safety, by the submission of a Bid for this project. The submission of a Bid is incontrovertible representation by the Bidder that he has complied with every requirement of this section.

## **Bid Security**

As a guarantee that the Bidder will promptly enter into a contract and execute both performance and payment bonds on the forms included in the contract documents if awarded the contract, the Bidder must meet the following bid security requirements as set forth in Texas Water Code Chapter 49 Subchapter I. If the Bid proposal exceeds \$50,000 up to \$250,000, the Bidder must submit a bid security in the amount of at least two (2%) percent of the amount of the maximum total bid in the form of a certified or cashier's check on a responsible bank in the state. If the Bid exceeds \$250,000, the Bidder must submit a bid bond in the amount of five (5%) percent of the amount of the maximum total bid in the form of an approved Bidder's Bond underwritten by a surety authorized to conduct business in the respective state.

## **Qualification Statement of Bidder**

Bidders must submit documentation within ten (10) days of Owner's request to demonstrate that the contractor is qualified by experience and capability of successfully executing the contract within the contract time and for the contract amount. The following information should be included:

- a. Qualifications and experience of the Bidders, including key personnel to be assigned to the project.
- b. Qualification and experience of subcontractors.
- c. Qualifications of manufactures proposed to furnish the principle items of material or equipment.
- d. Financial data consisting of audited financial statements for the last five years.
- e. Previous experience and present contracts.
- f. List of available equipment.
- g. Evidence of authority to conduct business in the jurisdiction where the project is located.

The Owner may conduct investigations as considered necessary to establish the responsibility, qualifications, and financial ability of the Bidders, proposed subcontractors, and other persons or organizations to do the work as described. The Owner may reject the Bid of any Bidder who does not meet any such evaluation to our satisfaction.

#### **Conflict of Interest**

Pursuant to Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code, any person or agent of a person who contracts or seeks to contract for the sale or purchase of property, goods, or services with a local government entity (i.e. Sabine River Authority of Texas) must disclose in the Conflicts of Interest Questionnaire Form (CIQ) the person's affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest with the local government entity. By law, the CIQ must be filed with the Owner's Records Management Officer no later than seven (7) days after the date the person begins contract discussions or negotiations with the Owner or submits an application or response to a Request for Bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential agreement with Owner. Updated Questionnaires must be filed in conformance with Chapter 176.

A copy of the CIQ is attached. If you have any questions about compliance, please consult your own legal counsel. Compliance is the individual responsibility of each person or agent of a person who is subject to the filing requirement. An offense under Chapter 176 carries a penalty up to a Class A misdemeanor.

#### **Unit Price and Quantities**

The unit price for each of the items in the Bid shall include its pro rata share of overhead so that the sum of the products obtained by multiplying the quantity shown for each item by the unit price represents the total bid. Any Bid not conforming to this requirement may be rejected as informal. Special attention is drawn to this condition, as the unit prices will be used to determine the amount of any change orders resulting from an increase or decrease in quantities.

Unless stated otherwise in this Bid package, the Owner is obligated during the period stipulated to purchase all its normal requirements from the successful Bidder and the Bidder is obligated to supply

the quantities which the Owner requires. The quantities stated are given as a general guide for bidding but are not guaranteed amounts, they represent the best estimated usage. The Owner reserves the option to purchase more or less of those services at the Bid price.

## **Sales Tax**

The Owner is exempt by law from payment of Texas State Sales and Use Tax Laws and Federal Excise Tax and is also an exempt agency as defined by the statutes of the State of Louisiana. The Bidder shall not include such taxes in the Bid.

## **Contract Time**

The commencement and completion time for the project shall be as stipulated in the Bid proposal.

## **Wage Rates and Employment Qualifications**

The Bidder's attention is called to the fact that not less than the federally determined prevailing (Davis-Bacon and Related Acts) wage rate as contained in the contract documents must be paid on this project.

## **Modification or Withdrawal of Bids**

Any modifications or withdrawals to Bid submissions which occur prior to the Bid opening can be done upon written request to the Owner. Modified Bids must still be submitted before the Bid opening and meet all stated requirements. Modifications cannot be made to any Bid submission after the Bid opening. No Bid may be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days after Bid opening, except by mutual consent of the Owner and the Bidder.

## **Time for Receiving Bids**

Bids received prior to the advertised hour of opening will be kept securely sealed. The representative appointed to open the Bids will decide when the specified time has arrived, and no Bid received thereafter will be considered.

#### **Required Bid Response Documents**

The following documents are required to be completed and be considered as a responsive bidder to this request for bid.

- a. Bid Proposal documents completed and signed as described above.
- b. Bid Bond
- c. Bid Opening Form This form is to be completed which will be read publicly at the public bid opening.
- d. Vendor Compliance to State Law Form
- e. Attestations
- f. Affidavits

- g. Bonding Company Information Identification of bonding company to be used for performance and payment bonds in the event of being awarded as successful Bidder.
- h. Non-Collusion Affidavit
- i. Form W-9 Request of Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification
- j. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire Form
- k. Additional items as stipulated in the request for bid

## **Opening of Bids**

The Owner will, at the time and placed fixed for the opening of Bids, open each Bid and publicly read it aloud, irrespective of any irregularities therein. Bidders and other interested individuals may be present at the public bid reading.

## Representation

By executing and submitting a Bid, the Bidder hereby represents and warrants to the Owner that the Bidder has read and understands the Bid documents and the Bid is made in accordance with the Bid documents. The Bidder also represents and warrants that the individual submitting the documents made part of the bid response is authorized to sign such documents on behalf of the Bidder and to bind the Bidder under any contract that may result from the submission of the response.

## **Confidentiality of Documents**

The Owner is subject to the Texas Public Information Act (PIA). Any information submitted to the Owner by the Bidder shall be considered non-confidential and available to the public, except as follows:

In the event a Bidder considers a specific portion of their Bid to be confidential and subject to an exception to disclosure under the PIA, such portion must be clearly identified and marked "CONFIDENTIAL". Do not mark an entire proposal confidential, as this is not in conformance with the PIA and is not acceptable. Only the specific portion or portions of the Bid that the Bidder considers to be confidential pursuant to the PIA should be marked. **IF AN ENTIRE BID IS MARKED CONFIDENTIAL, THE OWNER WILL NOT TREAT ANY PORTION OF THE BID AS CONFIDENTIAL AND THE BID MAY BE REJECTED AS NON-CONFORMING.** The Owner will honor notations of confidentiality in accordance with this paragraph and decline to release such information initially; however, final determination of whether a particular portion of a Bid may in fact be withheld pursuant to the PIA will be made by the Texas Attorney General or a court of competent jurisdiction.

In the event a public information request is received for a portion of a Bid that has been marked confidential, the Owner will ask the affected Bidder if the information may be released. If the release is agreed to, the Owner shall release the information.

If the release is denied, the matter shall be referred to the Texas Attorney General's Office in accordance with the process set forth in the PIA. The Bidder shall be fully and solely responsible for submitting arguments and evidence within the statutory timeframes to the Texas Attorney General's

Office regarding its claim of confidentiality. The Owner will NOT submit arguments on behalf of the Bidder.

The Texas Attorney General's Office shall rule on the matter. In the event that it is determined by opinion of the Texas Attorney General or court of competent jurisdiction that such information may not be withheld, then such information will be made available to the requestor. If it is determined that the information may be withheld, Owner will withhold the information from the requestor.

Pricing information contained in bids or contracts is not considered confidential under the PIA and will be disclosed without making a request to the Texas Attorney General.

#### **Award of Contract**

The Owner shall have the right to reject any and all bids in accordance with specifications of this document or any applicable state law. Unless the Owner elects to reject all Bids, the contract will be awarded as promptly as possible, consistent with the time required for a thorough analysis of all Bids submitted. Bidders are required to hold bids for the minimum time frame as stipulated in this Request for Bid. The award will be made to the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder or to the Bidder who provides goods or services at the best value for the Owner.

In determining the best value for the Owner, the following may be considered:

- a. The amount bid;
- b. Reputation of the bidder and the bidder's goods or services;
- c. Quality of the bidder's goods or services;
- d. Extent to which the goods or services meet the needs of the Owner;
- e. Bidder's past relationship with the Owner;
- f. Total long-term cost to the Owner to acquire the bidder's goods or services;
- g. Bidder's past experience in performing similar work;
- h. Bidder's financial record indicating the stability of the bidder;
- i. Bidder's history of successfully completing projects; and
- j. Any relevant criteria specifically listed in the request for bids or proposals.

Each Bidder agrees to waive any claim it has or may have against the Owner, Engineer, and their respective employees, arising out of or in connection with the administration, evaluation, or recommendation of any Bid.

## **Execution of Agreement**

Upon award to the successful Bidder, the following conditions and requirements are part of the execution of the agreement by the Contractor as specified herein.

## **Insurance Requirements**

The Contractor shall, at their sole expense, maintain insurance coverage as outlined in the General Conditions. The Contractor must provide proof of the required insurance coverage and obtain approval from the Owner prior to entering into the contract.

## **Performance and Payment Bonds**

The Contractor must provide performance and payment bonds for this contract as stated herein.

<u>Performance Bond:</u> By Texas State statute, local governments must require a performance bond from all contractors where such contracts involve construction, alteration, or repair of buildings or other public works projects in excess of \$100,000.00. Such bonds must be executed by a corporate surety authorized to do business in the State of Texas in accordance with Article 7.19-1 Bond of Surety Company; Chapter 7 of the Insurance Code, must be for not less than one-hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, and remain in effect for one year beyond the date of acceptance by the Owner. Performance bonds are conditioned upon "the faithful performance of the work in accordance with the drawings, specifications, and contract documents". These are in effect performance guarantees to assure completion of construction. These bonds are solely for the protection of the Owner.

<u>Payment Bond:</u> A payment bond is one executed in connection with a contract (construction, alteration, or repair) to assure payment as required by law to all persons supplying labor and materials in the execution of work provided for in the contract. These bonds are required solely for the protection of all such claimants. These, like performance bonds, must be issued by a State approved corporate surety in accordance with Article 7.19-1 Bond of Surety Company; Chapter 7 of the Insurance Code, must also be for not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, and remain in effect for one year beyond the date of acceptance by the Owner. The \$25,000.00 State requirement (i.e., all contracts over that amount will require the Owner to have one hundred percent (100%) payment bonds) is also the same.

Failure of the successful Bidder to execute such an Agreement and to supply the required bonds within ten days after the prescribed forms are presented for signature, or within such extended period as the Owner may grant, based upon reasons determined sufficient by the Owner shall constitute a default, and the Owner may either award the Contract to the next lowest responsible Bidder or re-advertise for bids, and may charge against the Bidder the difference between the amount of the bid and the amount for which a contract for the work is subsequently executed, up to the amount of the Bid Bond. If a more favorable bid is received by re-advertising, the defaulting Bidder shall have no claim against the Owner for a refund.

## **Equal Opportunity**

The Owner provides equal opportunity for all qualified parties including Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBs). If your organization or any associated sub-contractors on the project are a certified HUB with the State of Texas, please submit documentation of the certified organization, including description of the work, percentage of the contract expected to be completed by the HUB, and the certification number of the HUB.

## **Executed Documents**

Agreement and Bonds will be prepared in not more than six counterpart (original signed) sets. The Owner will furnish Contractor three sets of conforming contract documents, technical specifications, and drawings free of charge. Any additional sets will be obtained at commercial reproduction rates.

# Request for Bids - Scope of Work Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Stone for Rip Rap RFB #23-001

## **General**

This work shall consist of furnishing and hauling approved stone for rip-rap in accordance with specifications listed below. The Owner reserves the right to increase/decrease the quantity by 20% at unit bid price. **Materials shall be ordered and could be received multiple times throughout a 2 month period**. However, delivery must be completed on or before December 31, 2022.

## **Materials**

Stone for Rip-Rap shall be pit run quarry stone, reasonably free from cracks, seams, or other defects which would increase its deterioration from the actions of nature. **Material furnished shall be reasonable well graded with no material smaller than 10" in diameter and a minimum of 95% by weight smaller than 30" in diameter.** Soft or weathered rock will not be acceptable. Prior to shipping or delivery of material, the Owner shall be notified of the source of the material and shall be provided source material test results for compliance with the specifications. Any material furnished may, at the option of the engineer, be subjected to tests for specific gravity, absorption, unit weight, Los Angeles abrasion, soundness in magnesium sulfate, freezing and thawing, wetting and drying, petrographic analysis and such other tests as may be considered necessary to demonstrate to the engineer that the material is acceptable for intended use. The receiving location is shown below:

1350 TONS - Dam Site at 450 Spur 135, Burkeville, TX

Further information on exact location will be provided to the successful bidder.

## Minimum Specifications are as follows

- WEIGHT AND ABSORPTION Rip-Rap shall consist of durable natural stone that will not disintegrate upon exposure to the elements or be easily broken from handling and shall be reasonably free from earth and other foreign materials when tested in accordance with AASHTO Designation T 85. The solid weight of stone shall be a minimum of 150 pounds per cubic foot (based on bulk specific gravity) when tested in accordance with ASTM C127.
- SOUNDNESS IN MAGNESIUM SULFATE Maximum loss 18% weighted average at 5 cycles when tested for soundness in magnesium sulfate in

accordance with the ASTM designation C 88. Test shall be run using particles passing a  $2\frac{1}{2}$ " inch sieve and retained on  $1\frac{1}{2}$ " sieve.

- RESISTANCE TO ABRASION Maximum percentage of wear 60 after 500 revolutions, as determined by ASTM Designation C 131, "Text for Abrasion of Course Aggregate by Use of the Los Angeles Machine." A grading.
- MATERIAL SOURCES Material shall be natural rock supplied from a quarry. Material shall be sourced from quarries located in Corsicana, Texas; Marble Falls, Texas; Swayer, OK; and Genevieve, MO. All other sources must be pre-approved.
- TESTING AND APPROVAL Samples of stone from a source not previously approved shall be taken under supervision of the engineer and submitted for testing and approved 10 days prior to submitting of bid. All materials shall come from an approved source. It will be the responsibility of the bidder to have material approved 10 days prior to bid date. Any bidder submitting a bid naming an unapproved source will be ruled irregular and will not be considered for award.

## **Method of Measure and Basis of Payment**

Stone for Rip-Rap shall be measured by the ton and payment will be made at the unit price per ton on the basis of certified printed ticket weights furnished by the contractor to the engineer at the point of delivery. All pricing will include FOB for the locations listed above with all transportation charges prepaid unless otherwise requested. Payment is to include all costs of furnishing the material, providing certified printed ticket weights, hauling the material and any other material, equipment, tools, labor, and incidentals which may be necessary to complete this contract.

# **BID PROPOSAL**

# Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Stone for Rip Rap RFB #23-001

	Place:	Burkeville, Lexas
	Date:	
Proposal of		
haveingtter called Didder (a con		the level of the Otata
hereinafter called Bidder, (a cor		
of) (partnership consisting (a proprietorship) (strike out inapplicable	y UI	)
(a proprietorship) (strike out mapphicable	references).	
To: Sabine River Authority of Texas ar Newton County, Texas; (hereinafter calle	•	, State of Louisiana,
The Bidder, in compliance with your reconstruction, having examined the contraction and being familiar with all of the conditional labor, hereby proposes to furnish all labor herein, and at the prices stated below. The performing the work required under the part.	ct documents, drawings a ns surrounding the availal , materials, and supplies w These prices are to cover	nd related documents bility of materials and rithin the time set forth all expenses incurred
Bidder hereby agrees to commence wor specified in a written "Notice to Proceed" within <u>60</u> consecutive calendar days the Bidder further agrees to pay as liquidated calendar day thereafter as provided.	from the Owner and to fully reafter as stipulated in the	y complete the project contract documents.
Bidder acknowledges receipt of the follow	ving addenda:	
Addendum No. 1 dated,	Received	
Addendum No. 2 dated,		
Addendum No. 3 dated,		
Addendum No. 4 dated,		
	Received	

Base Proposal: Bidder agrees to perform all the improvements and related items described in the specifications and shown on the drawings for the sum of the following unit prices and lump sum prices:

Bidder agrees that if the contract is awarded to him, he will secure proper compliance with the terms and provisions of the contract, to insure and guarantee the work until final completion and acceptance, and to guarantee payment of all lawful claims for labor performed and materials furnished in the fulfillment of the contract.

Bidder represents and warrants that all statements and information prepared and submitted in this document are current, complete, true, and accurate. Submitting a Bid with a false statement or material misrepresentations made during the performance of a contract is a material breach of contract and may void the submitted Bid and any resulting contract.

Bidder certifies that the bid prices contained in this proposal have been carefully checked and are submitted as correct and final and agrees that in the event of discrepancy between words and figures for any price, the words shall control.

The Bidder represents to the Owner as follows:

- (1) That he has personally examined and verified the bid, together with all figures, work papers, and other data that were used in preparing this bid, and that he finds them in all things correct and that the bid is full, complete, and correct in every respect;
- (2) That if the Owner accepts his bid and awards the contract to him, that he, or the person or corporation for whom he is acting will execute a contract and will perform the work in accordance with the contract documents upon which the bid is based.
- (3) That he will comply with and will cause all subcontractors to comply with the requirement of Chapter 2258, Subchapter B, of the Texas Local Government Code to compensate workers at not less than the federally determined prevailing wage rates.

# BID PROPOSAL Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation – Stone for Rip Rap RFB #23-001

Item	Quantity	Unit	Description	Unit Price	Total Price
			BASE BID ITEMS		
1.	1350	TON	Furnish and haul approved stone for rip-rap in accordance with specifications listed in the attached scope of work, delivered to the Dam Site Location Noted.		
			DOLLARS		
			CENTS	\$	\$ *

<sup>\*</sup>Do not extend unit prices or total out bid items. Show unit price in words and figures only. In case of discrepancy, the amount shown in words will govern.

# Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation - Stone for Rip Rap RFB #23-001

Total Base Bid:	
(To be calculated by the Owner and/or Engineer. Bidder t	o complete Bid Opening
<u>Sheet)</u>	
	(\$).
(Amount shall be shown in both words and figures. In case of a in words will govern.)	discrepancy, the amount shown
The above unit prices shall include all labor, materials, too overhead, profit, insurance, etc., to cover the finished worlfor.	• •
Bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to rewaive any informality in the bidding.	eject any or all bids and to
The bidder agrees that his bid shall be good and may not 90 calendar days after the scheduled closing time for rece	•
Upon receipt of the Owner's written acceptance of this bid formal contract within 10 days and deliver Bonds and Insu General Conditions.	
Seal & Authorization (If Corporation)	
Title:	
Mailing Address:	
•	
Street Address:	
City, State, Zip:	
County:	
Phono:	

Bidder shall supply the following information for each principal in the firm:

Name:	
Mailing Address:	
City, State, Zip Code:	
Social Security Number:	
Name:	
Mailing Address:	
City, State, Zip Code:	
Social Security Number:	
Name:	
Mailing Address:	
City, State, Zip Code:	
Social Security Number:	
Name:	
Mailing Address:	
City, State, Zip Code:	
Social Security Number:	
Name:	
Mailing Address:	
City, State, Zip Code:	
Social Security Number:	
Name:	
Mailing Address:	
City, State, Zip Code:	
Social Security Number:	

# **BID BOND**

## KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,

That we,
as Principal, and
as Surety, are held firmly bound unto the Sabine River Authority of Texas and the Sabine River  Authority, State of Louisiana, hereinafter called Owner, in the penal sum of
the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, WHEREAS the Principal
has submitted a Bid for the work described as follows:
Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation
Stone for Rip Rap
RFB# 23-001
NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall not withdraw said Bid within the period specified therein after the opening of the same, or, if no period be specified, within thirty (30) days after the said opening, and shall within the period specified therefor, or if no period be specified, within ten (10) days after the prescribed forms are presented to him for signature, enter into a written Contract with the Owner in accordance with the Bid as accepted, and give bond with good and sufficient surety or sureties, as may be required, for the faithful performance and proper fulfillment of such contract; or in the event of the withdrawal of said Bid within the period specified, or the failure to enter into such Contract and give such bond within the time specified, if the Principal shall pay the Owner the difference between the amount specified in said Bid and the amount for which the Owner may procure the required work or supplies or both, if the latter be in excess of the former, then the above obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the above-bounded parties have executed this instrument under
their several seals this day of, 20, the name and
corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these Presents duly signed by its

undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body.

	(Principal)	
	(Business Address)	-
Witness:	ByAffix Corporat	
	Title	_
	(Corporate Surety)	_
	(Address)	-
		-
Witness:	ByAffix Corporat Seal	
	Title	_
(Power-of-attorney for person signing f	or Surety Company must be attached to bond.)	
CERTIFICATE AS TO	CORPORATE PRINCIPAL	
in the within bond; that, was then of	the Secretary of the corporation named as Prince who signed the said bond on behalf of the Prince said corporation; that I know his signature, and d was duly signed, sealed, and attested to for an governing body.	cipa l his
	Affix Corporate Se	al

# **BID OPENING**

In the space provided below, enter your total Base Bid amount for this project. Only this figure will be read publicly at the public bid opening.

It is understood and agreed by the bidder in signing the proposal that the total bid amount entered below is not binding on either the bidder or the Owner. It is further agreed that the official total bid amount for this proposal will be determined by multiplying the unit prices for each unit price pay item by the respective estimated quantities shown in this proposal, and then totaling all of the extended amounts plus the amounts bid for all lump sum items.

Project:	RFB# 23-001	
	Toledo Bend Project Joint Ope	eration- Stone for Rip Rap
Owner:	Sabine River Authority of Texa	as
	Sabine River Authority, State of	of Louisiana
	Newton County, Texas	
		\$
		Total Base Bid Amount
		Name of Bidder

## VENDOR COMPLIANCE TO TEXAS STATE LAW

Chapter 2252.002, of the Texas Government Code applies to the award of government contract to non-resident bidders. This law provides that:

"A government entity may not award a governmental contract to a nonresident bidder unless the nonresident underbids the lowest bid submitted by a responsible resident bidder by an amount that is less than the greater of the amount by which a resident bidder would be required to underbid the nonresident bidder to obtain a comparable contract in the state in which the nonresident's principal place of business is located

"Nonresident Bidder" refers to a person who is not a resident of Texas

Check the statement that is correct for Bidder.

"Resident Bidder" refers to a person whose principal place of business is in this state, including a contractor whose ultimate parent company or majority owner has its principal place of business in this state.

## **VENDOR COMPLIANCE TO LOUISIANA STATE LAW**

Louisiana R.S. 38:2225 applies to the award of public works contracts to nonresident bidders. This law provides that:

"If a nonresident contractor bidding on public work in the state of Louisiana is domiciled in a state that provides a percentage preference in favor of contractors domiciled in that state over Louisiana resident contractors for the same type of work, then every Louisiana resident contractor shall be granted the same preference over contractors domiciled in the other state favoring contractors domiciled therein whenever the nonresident contractor bids on public work in Louisiana."

"Any local law, either by legislative act or otherwise, ordinance, or executive order enacted prior to the effective date of this Act, or enacted hereinafter in conflict with this Section, or granting any local contractor or subcontractor preference over other Louisiana resident contractors shall be contrary to the provision of this Section."

"The provisions and requirements of this Section shall not be waived by any public entity."

Check the statement that is correct for Bidder.			
	Nonresident bidders in(give state), our principal blace of business, are required to bepercent lower than resident bidders by State law. A copy of the statute is attached.		
	Nonresident bidders in(give state), our principal place of business, are not required to under bid resident bidders.		
[]	Our principal place of business or corporate offices are in the State of Louisiana.		
Bidder:			
Company Nam	e:		
r y	(typed or printed)		
By:			
J	(Signature attach evidence of authority to sign)		
Name:			
	(typed or printed)		
Title:			
	(Signature of Corporate Secretary)		
Business Addr	ess:		
Phone:	Facsimile:E-mail		

## **ATTESTATIONS**

Appearer, as a Bidder on the above-entitled Public Works Project, does hereby attest that:

## LA. R.S. 38:2227 PAST CRIMINAL CONVICTIONS OF BIDDERS

A.	No sole proprietor or individual partner, incorporator, director, manager, officer, organizer,
	or member who has a minimum of a ten percent (10%) ownership in the bidding entity
	named below has been convicted of, or has entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to
	any of the following state crimes or equivalent federal crimes:

- (a) Public bribery (R.S. 14:118)
- (c) Extortion (R.S. 14:66)
- (b) Corrupt influencing (R.S. 14:120) (d) Money laundering (R.S. 14:23)
- B. Within the past five years from the project bid date, no sole proprietor or individual partner, incorporator, director, manager, officer, organizer, or member who has a minimum of a ten percent (10%) ownership in the bidding entity named below has been convicted of, or has entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any of the following state crimes or equivalent federal crimes, during the solicitation or execution of a contract or bid awarded pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 10 of Title 38 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes:
  - (a) Theft (R.S. 14:67)

- (f) Bank fraud (R.S. 14:71.1)
- (b) Identity Theft (R.S. 14:67.16)
- (g) Forgery (R.S. 14:72)
- (c) Theft of a business record (R.S.14:67.20) 14:202)
- (h) Contractors; misapplication of payments (R.S.
- (d) False accounting (R.S. 14:70)
- (i) Malfeasance in office (R.S. 14:134)
- (e) Issuing worthless checks (R.S. 14:71)

#### LA. R.S. 38:2212.10 VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYEES

- A. At the time of bidding, Appearer is registered and participates in a status verification system to verify that all new hires in the state of Louisiana are legal citizens of the United States or are legal aliens.
- B. If awarded the contract, Appearer shall continue, during the term of the contract, to utilize a status verification system to verify the legal status of all new employees in the state of Louisiana.
- C. If awarded the contract, Appearer shall require all subcontractors to submit to it a sworn affidavit verifying compliance with Paragraphs (A) and (B) of this Subsection.

NAME OF BIDDER	NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY OF BIDDER
DATE	TITLE OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY OF BIDDER
SIGNA	ATURE OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY OF BIDDER

# **AFFIDAVITS**

One of the following four affidavits shall be executed and provided with this information. The individual signing the affidavit shall attach evidence of their authority to bind the organization to an agreement.

## **AFFIDAVIT FOR CORPORATION**

State		) §	
County/Parish	of		§
		, being duly	sworn deposes and
(Name)			
that they are		of	the
	(Title)		
		corporatio	n submitting the
	are authorized to make t	nis affidavit on behalf of the (	Corporation.
(Signature)			
Signed and sw	orn to me before this	day of	, 20 <u>.</u> .
Signed and sw	orn to me before this	day of	, 20 <u>.</u> .
Signed and sw	orn to me before this	day of	, 20 <u></u> .

## AFFIDAVIT FOR PARTNERSHIP

<u> </u>		) §	
County /Parish	n of	)	§
		, being duly	sworn deposes and
(Name)			
that they are		of	the
	(Title)		
		company s	submitting the
		ct and contain no material r is affidavit on behalf of the	•
(Signature)		_	
	orn to me before this	 day of	, 20 <u></u> .
	orn to me before this	day of	, 20 <u></u> .
	orn to me before this	day of	, 20 <u></u> .

# AFFIDAVIT FOR INDIVIDUAL

County/Parish of	State	) §
that they areof theof theof theof theof theof theof theof the	County/Parish of	<u>)</u> §
that they areof theof thecompany substrates such graphs and related information; have read such do that such documents are true and correct and contain no material misrepression.		, being duly sworn deposes an
(Title)company substrates such documents are true and correct and contain no material misrepr	(Name)	
company substoregoing qualification form and related information; have read such do that such documents are true and correct and contain no material misrepr	that they are	of the
foregoing qualification form and related information; have read such do that such documents are true and correct and contain no material misrepr	(Title)	
(Signature)	foregoing qualification form and related infe	
Signed and sworn to me before thisday of	(Signature)	
	me before this	day of, 20

## JOINT VENTURE STATEMENT

We the undersigned do hereby give notice Project.	e to our agreement to bid	as a joint venture on the
(Name of Joint Venture)		
(Name of Firm)		
(Signature)		
Signed and sworn to me before this	day of	, 20
(Notary Public)		
My commission expires:		
(Name of Firm)		
(Signature)		
Signed and sworn to me before this	day of	, 20
(Notary Public)		
My commission expires:		

END OF SECTION

# **BONDING COMPANY INFORMATION**

The following person, firm, or corporation has agreed to execute the required payment and performance bonds in the event this contract is awarded to the bidder:

Name of Surety:	
Mailing Address:	
City, State, Zip:	
Telephone Number:	
Is surety authorized to operate in Texas?	
Is surety aware of size of project?	
Does surety have adequate authorization and contract?	resources to cover bonds for the amount of this
Rating from Best's Key Rating Guide	
Project: Toledo Bend Project Joint Opera Stone for Rip Rap RFB #23-001	ation
-	Name of Ridder

# NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FOR PRIME CONTRACTOR

State of)	
) ss. County of)	
, being first duly swo	orn, deposes and says that:
(1) He is	of
, the Bidder that has submitted the referenced Bid;	
(2) He is fully informed respecting the preparation to (name of contract), and of pertinent circumstances in	and contents of the referenced Bid submitted  (Owner) in connection with
(3) Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sh	am Bid;
(4) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its office employees, or parties in interest, including this a connived, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with a collusive or sham Bid in connection with such Conwith such Contract, or has in any manner, directly or communication or conference with any other Bid the referenced Bid or in the Bid of any other bidder of the Bid price or the Bid price of any other Bidder connivance, or unlawful agreement (Owner) or any person interested in the proposed C (5) The price or prices quoted in the referenced Bid collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement, representatives, owners, employees, or particles.	affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, my other Bidder, firm, or person to submit a tract, or to refrain from bidding in connection or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion der, firm, or person to fix the price or prices in the contract of the price of the contract of the
(Signed)	
Subscribed and sworn to before me by the said of, 20	Title on thisday
Bv·	
By: Notary Public	<u> </u>
County,	[Notary Seal]
My commission expires, 20	

# NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FOR PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTOR

State of)	
County of) ss.	
, being first duly sw	orn, deposes and says that:
(1) He is of hereinafter referred to as the "Subcontractor";	
(2) He is fully informed respecting the preparation	on and contents of the subcontractor's Proposal
submitted by the subcontractor to Contractor for certain work in connection with	, the
of contract), for	(Owner);
(3) Such subcontractor's Proposal is genuine and i	s not a collusive or sham proposal;
employees, or parties in interest, including this connived, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with a collusive or sham Proposal in connection with such Contract, or has agreement or collusion or communication or conferix the price or prices in said subcontractor's Proposecure through collusion, conspiracy, connivance, the	any other Bidder, firm, or person to submit a such Contract, or to refrain from submitting a in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by erence with any other Bidder, firm, or person to osal or any other subcontractor's proposal, or to or unlawful agreement any advantage against (Owner) or any person interested in the separate of the Bidder or any full agreement on the part of the Bidder or any
_	
	Title .
Subscribed and sworn to before me by the said on this day of	_, 20
By:	
Notary Public County,	[Notary Seal]
My commission expires, 20	

# (Rev. October 2018) Department of the Treasury

## **Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification**

Give Form to the requester. Do not send to the IRS.

Internal	Reve	enue Service	► Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for inst	ructions and the lates	st inform	ation.	•88		_			
5	1.1	Name (as shown	on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do	not leave this line blank.					•			
	2 E	Business name/o	lisregarded entity name, if different from above									
Print or type. Specific Instructions on page 3.	3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only <b>one</b> of the following seven boxes.  5 Individual/sole proprietor or C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate						c ir	4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3):  Exempt payee code (if any)				
Print or type c Instruction		Limited liabilit	y company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S= the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification	ENGINEER PROPERTY VICTORIAN PROPERTY SET APPROPRIATION	SOUTH STREET	ot che	_81	xemptic			89	rtina
Print c c Instr		LLC if the LLC another LLC t	is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax pull from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax	om the owner unless the ourposes. Otherwise, a sing	wner of th le-membe	e LLC i	is c	ode (if a		TATO	тери	rung
ecifi	E	Other (see ins	tructions) ►		Total		(A	pplies to a	ocounts n	naintained	outside	the U.S.)
See <b>S</b> p	5 /	Address (numbe	, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.		Requeste	r's nan	ne and	laddres	s (opti	onal)		
ഗ്	6 (	City, state, and 2	IP code									
	7 L	ist account num	ber(s) here (optional)									
Par			yer Identification Number (TIN)		GEV const							
			propriate box. The TIN provided must match the nam			Social	secur	ity num	ber			7. 77.
reside	nt al	lien, sole prop	individuals, this is generally your social security num rietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for F yer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a n	Part I, later. For other				=		-		
TIN, later.						186						
Trock in the decodard to in the control of the cont		identification number										
Numb	Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.		2-									
Par	t II	Certifi	cation									
Unde	per	nalties of perju	ry, I certify that:									
2. I ar Ser	n no vice	t subject to ba (IRS) that I an	n this form is my correct taxpayer identification numb ickup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from bac n subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure nackup withholding; and	kup withholding, or (b)	I have n	ot bee	n noti	fied by	the Ir	nternal		
3. I ar	nal	J.S. citizen or	other U.S. person (defined below); and									
		CONTRACTOR AND A STATE OF THE S	ntered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exemp									
you ha acquis	ave fa sition	ailed to report or abandonm	s. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been no all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real est ent of secured property, cancellation of debt, contribution vidends, you are not required to sign the certification, but	ate transactions, item 2 ons to an individual retire	does not ement arr	apply. angem	For r	nortgag RA), an	ge inte d gene	rest pa erally, p	aid, bayme	ents
Sign Here		Signature of U.S. person			Date ►							
			uctions	• Form 1099-DIV (div funds)	/idends,	includi	ng th	ose fro	m sto	cks or	mutu	ıal
noted			o the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise	<ul> <li>Form 1099-MISC (v proceeds)</li> </ul>	various t	/pes o	f inco	me, pr	izes, a	wards	, or g	ross
<b>Futur</b>	e de	velopments.	For the latest information about developments	<ul> <li>Form 1099-B (stock</li> </ul>	k or muti	ial fun	d sale	es and	certai	n othe	r	

related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

## Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

- transactions by brokers)
- Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
- Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)
- Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page **2** 

By signing the filled-out form, you:

- 1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued),
  - 2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or
- 3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and
- 4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See *What is FATCA reporting*, later, for further information.

**Note:** If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

**Definition of a U.S. person.** For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

- An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien;
- A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;
- · An estate (other than a foreign estate); or
- A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners' share of effectively connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States.

- In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner of the disregarded entity and not the entity;
- In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust; and
- In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Pub. 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities)

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a "saving clause." Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items.

- 1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.
  - 2. The treaty article addressing the income
- 3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving clause and its exceptions.
- $4. \ \mbox{The type}$  and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.
- $\,$  5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty article.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

## **Backup Withholding**

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 24% of such payments. This is called "backup withholding." Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if:

- 1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,
- 2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the instructions for Part II for details),
  - 3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,
- 4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or
- 5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See *Exempt payee code*, later, and the separate Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Also see Special rules for partnerships, earlier.

## What is FATCA Reporting?

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating foreign financial institution to report all United States account holders that are specified United States persons. Certain payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See *Exemption from FATCA reporting code*, later, and the Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

## Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a grantor trust dies.

#### **Penalties**

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of \$50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a \$500 penalty.

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page **3** 

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

## **Specific Instructions**

#### Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

If this Form W-9 is for a joint account (other than an account maintained by a foreign financial institution (FFI)), list first, and then circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of Form W-9. If you are providing Form W-9 to an FFI to document a joint account, each holder of the account that is a U.S. person must provide a Form W-9.

a. **Individual.** Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.

**Note: ITIN applicant:** Enter your individual name as it was entered on your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your application.

- b. Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter your business, trade, or "doing business as" (DBA) name on line 2.
- c. Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C corporation, or S corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the entity's tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.
- d. Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.
- e. Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a "disregarded entity." See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(iii). Enter the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on line 2, "Business name/disregarded entity name." If the owner of the disregarded entity is a foreign person, the owner must complete an appropriate Form W-8 instead of a Form W-9. This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN.

#### Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded entity name, you may enter it on line 2.

#### Line 3

Check the appropriate box on line 3 for the U.S. federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one box on line 3.

IF the entity/person on line 1 is a(n)	THEN check the box for
Corporation	Corporation
<ul> <li>Individual</li> <li>Sole proprietorship, or</li> <li>Single-member limited liability company (LLC) owned by an individual and disregarded for U.S. federal tax purposes.</li> </ul>	Individual/sole proprietor or single- member LLC
<ul> <li>LLC treated as a partnership for U.S. federal tax purposes,</li> <li>LLC that has filed Form 8832 or 2553 to be taxed as a corporation, or</li> <li>LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner but the owner is another LLC that is not disregarded for U.S. federal tax purposes.</li> </ul>	Limited liability company and enter the appropriate tax classification. (P= Partnership; C= C corporation; or S= S corporation)
Partnership	Partnership
Trust/estate	Trust/estate

#### Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the appropriate space on line 4 any code(s) that may apply to you.

#### Exempt payee code.

- Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup withholding.
- Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup withholding for certain payments, including interest and dividends.
- Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.
- Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to attorneys' fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

- 1 An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2)
- 2—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities
- $3-{\rm A}$  state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities
- $4-A \, \text{foreign}$  government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities
- 5-A corporation
- 6—A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or possession
- 7 A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission
  - 8-A real estate investment trust
- $9-\mbox{An}$  entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940
- 10-A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)
- 11 A financial institution
- 12-A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or custodian
- 13-A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page **4** 

The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

IF the payment is for	THEN the payment is exempt for		
Interest and dividend payments	All exempt payees except for 7		
Broker transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 through 11 and all C corporations. S corporations must not enter an exempt payee code because they are exempt only for sales of noncovered securities acquired prior to 2012.		
Barter exchange transactions and patronage dividends	Exempt payees 1 through 4		
Payments over \$600 required to be reported and direct sales over \$5,0001	Generally, exempt payees 1 through 5 <sup>2</sup>		
Payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form for an account you hold in the United States, you may leave this field blank. Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with "Not Applicable" (or any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.

- A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)
  - B-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities
- C—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities
- D—A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets, as described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)
- E—A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)
- F—A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state
  - G-A real estate investment trust
- H-A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity registered at all times during the tax year under the investment Company Act of 1940
  - I-A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)
  - J-A bank as defined in section 581
  - K-A broker
- L—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1)

M-A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan

**Note:** You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee code should be completed.

#### Line 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information returns. If this address differs from the one the requester already has on file, write NEW at the top. If a new address is provided, there is still a chance the old address will be used until the payor changes your address in their records.

#### Line 6

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

# Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see *How to get a TIN* below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN or EIN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner, enter the owner's SSN (or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity's EIN. If the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's EIN.

**Note:** See What Name and Number To Give the Requester, later, for further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at www.SSA.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/Businesses and clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. Go to www.irs.gov/Forms to view, download, or print Form W-7 and/or Form SS-4. Or, you can go to www.irs.gov/OrderForms to place an order and have Form W-7 and/or SS-4 mailed to you within 10 business days.

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN and write "Applied For" in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to the requester.

**Note:** Entering "Applied For" means that you have already applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the appropriate Form W-8.

#### Part II. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if item 1, 4, or 5 below indicates otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see *Exempt payee code*, earlier.

**Signature requirements.** Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 through 5 below.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(f), and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page **5** 

- 1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.
- 2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.
- **3. Real estate transactions.** You must sign the certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.
- 4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. "Other payments" include payments made in the course of the requester's trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to attorneys (including payments to corporations).
- 5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), ABLE accounts (under section 529A), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

# What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account:	Give name and SSN of:	
1. Individual	The individual	
Two or more individuals (joint account) other than an account maintained by an FFI	The actual owner of the account or, if combined funds, the first individual on the account 1	
Two or more U.S. persons     (joint account maintained by an FFI)	Each holder of the account	
Custodial account of a minor     (Uniform Gift to Minors Act)	The minor <sup>2</sup>	
5. a. The usual revocable savings trust (grantor is also trustee)	The grantor-trustee <sup>1</sup>	
<ul> <li>b. So-called trust account that is not a legal or valid trust under state law</li> </ul>	The actual owner <sup>1</sup>	
Sole proprietorship or disregarded entity owned by an individual	The owner <sup>3</sup>	
7. Grantor trust filing under Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i) (A))	The grantor*	
For this type of account:	Give name and EIN of:	
Disregarded entity not owned by an individual	The owner	
9. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust	Legal entity <sup>4</sup>	
A valid trust, estate, or pension trust     Corporation or LLC electing     corporate status on Form 8832 or     Form 2553	Legal entity <sup>4</sup> The corporation	
10. Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or	· ·	
<ul> <li>10. Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553</li> <li>11. Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax-</li> </ul>	The corporation	
<ul><li>10. Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553</li><li>11. Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax-exempt organization</li></ul>	The corporation  The organization	

For this type of account:	Give name and EIN of:
Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as a state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments	The public entity
<ol> <li>Grantor trust filing under the Form 1041 Filing Method or the Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)(B))</li> </ol>	The trust

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a joint account has an SSN, that person's number must be furnished.

- <sup>3</sup> You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or DBA name on the "Business name/disregarded entity" name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.
- <sup>4</sup> List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see *Special rules for partnerships*, earlier.
- \*Note: The grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

**Note:** If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

# Secure Your Tax Records From Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk:

- Protect your SSN,
- Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
- Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Pub. 5027, Identity Theft Information for Taxpayers.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a systemic problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes. Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN.

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page **6** 

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this message to *phishing@irs.gov*. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration (TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at *spam@uce.gov* or report them at *www.ftc.gov/complaint*. You can contact the FTC at *www.ftc.gov/idtheft* or 877-IDTHEFT (877-438-4338). If you have been the victim of identity theft, see *www.identityTheft.gov* and Pub. 5027.

Visit www.irs.gov/ldentityTheft to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk.

# **Privacy Act Notice**

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information. Routine uses of this information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent information.

# CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

FORM CIQ

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

	w
This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.	OFFICE USE ONLY
This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).	Date Received
By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.	
A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.	
Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.	
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law re completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th busines you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)	
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.	
Name of Officers	
Name of Officer	
Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government offic officer, as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A). Also describe any family relationship with Complete subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described. Attack CIQ as necessary.  A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or limited other than investment income, from the vendor?  Yes No  B. Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment of the local government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income governmental entity?  Yes No  Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 members are lationship that the vendor named	the the local government officer. In additional pages to this Form the additional pages to this Form the local pages to the local pa
other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an o ownership interest of one percent or more.	
Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(b).	
7	
Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity	ate

# CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

Acomplete copy of Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code may be found at http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections cited on this form.

<u>Local Government Code § 176.001(1-a)</u>: "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties based on commercial activity of one of the parties. The term does not include a connection based on:

- (A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or an agency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
- (B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
- (C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency and that is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

#### Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):

- (a) A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:
  - (2) the vendor:
    - (A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or a family member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable income, other than investment income, that exceeds \$2,500 during the 12-month period preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that
      - (i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
      - (ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor;
    - (B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts that have an aggregate value of more than \$100 in the 12-month period preceding the date the officer becomes aware that:
      - (i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
      - (ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor.

#### Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a-1)

- (a) A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship with a local governmental entity and:
  - (1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A):
  - (2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
  - (3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity.
- (a-1) The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:
  - (1) the date that the vendor:
    - (A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local governmental entity; or
    - (B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for proposals or bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the local governmental entity; or
  - (2) the date the vendor becomes aware:
    - (A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
    - (B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or
    - (C) of a family relationship with a local government officer.

# **PREVAILING WAGE RATES**

# Newton County, Texas - Construction (TX190)

"REGISTER OF WAGE DETERMINATIONS UNDER | U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
THE SERVICE CONTRACT ACT | EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS ADMINISTRATION
By direction of the Secretary of Labor | WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION
WASHINGTON D.C. 20210

| Wage Determination No.: 2015-5851

Daniel W. Simms Division of | Revision No.: 19

Director Wage Determinations| Date Of Last Revision: 07/14/2022

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658 an hourly minimum wage of \$11.25 for calendar year 2022 applies to all contracts subject to the Service Contract Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$11.25 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 2022. The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

\_\_\_\_\_

State: Texas

Area: Texas County of Newton

\*\*Fringe Benefits Required Follow the Occupational Listing\*\*

OCCUPATION CODE - TITLE	FOOTNOTE RA	ΤE
01000 - Administrative Support And Clerical Occupations 01011 - Accounting Clerk I 01012 - Accounting Clerk II 01013 - Accounting Clerk III 01020 - Administrative Assistant 01035 - Court Reporter 01041 - Customer Service Representative I 01042 - Customer Service Representative II 01043 - Customer Service Representative III 01051 - Data Entry Operator I 01052 - Data Entry Operator II 01060 - Dispatcher Motor Vehicle 01070 - Document Preparation Clerk 01090 - Duplicating Machine Operator 01111 - General Clerk II 01112 - General Clerk III 01113 - General Clerk III 01114 - Messenger Courier 01191 - Order Clerk I 01192 - Order Clerk II 01261 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) I 01262 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) II	15. 16. 24. 25. 27. 13.56* 14.80* 16. 15. 17. 19.4 14.83* 14.83* 13.90* 15. 17. 20. 13.83* 14.93* 16. 16.	05 89 20 82 82 82 83 83 84 84 84 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87
01263 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) III 01270 - Production Control Clerk 01290 - Rental Clerk	20. 28. 15.	88

	16.16
01300 - Scheduler Maintenance	16.16
01311 - Secretary I	16.16
01312 - Secretary II	18.07
01313 - Secretary III	20.14
01320 - Service Order Dispatcher	17.42
01410 - Supply Technician	25.09
01420 - Survey Worker	15.29
01460 - Switchboard Operator/Receptionist	13.83***
01531 - Travel Clerk I	15.72
01532 - Travel Clerk II	16.90
01533 - Travel Clerk III	18.12
01611 - Word Processor I	14.39***
01612 - Word Processor II	16.16
01613 - Word Processor III	18.63
05000 - Automotive Service Occupations	
05005 - Automobile Body Repairer Fiberglass	22.83
05010 - Automotive Electrician	21.80
05040 - Automotive Glass Installer	20.84
05070 - Automotive Worker	20.84
05110 - Mobile Equipment Servicer	17.59
05130 - Motor Equipment Metal Mechanic	22.83
05160 - Motor Equipment Metal Worker	20.84
<u> </u>	20.04
05190 - Motor Vehicle Mechanic	
05220 - Motor Vehicle Mechanic Helper	16.86
05250 - Motor Vehicle Upholstery Worker	20.51
05280 - Motor Vehicle Wrecker	20.84
05310 - Painter Automotive	21.60
05340 - Radiator Repair Specialist	20.84
05370 - Tire Repairer	16.09
05400 - Transmission Repair Specialist	22.83
07000 - Food Preparation And Service Occupations	
07010 - Baker	12.39***
07041 - Cook I	11.88***
07041 COOK I 07042 - Cook II	13.89***
07070 - Dishwasher	11.12***
07130 - Food Service Worker	12.39***
07210 - Meat Cutter	14.45***
07260 - Waiter/Waitress	9.92***
09000 - Furniture Maintenance And Repair Occupations	
09010 - Electrostatic Spray Painter	23.08
09040 - Furniture Handler	13.48***
09080 - Furniture Refinisher	23.08
09090 - Furniture Refinisher Helper	16.69
09110 - Furniture Repairer Minor	19.94
09130 - Upholsterer	23.08
11000 - General Services And Support Occupations	25:00
11030 - General Services And Support Occupations 11030 - Cleaner Vehicles	12.84***
11060 - Elevator Operator	12.84***
11090 - Gardener	18.56
11122 - Housekeeping Aide	12.84***
11150 - Janitor	12.84***
11210 - Laborer Grounds Maintenance	13.63***
11240 - Maid or Houseman	11.01***
11260 - Pruner	12.10***
11270 - Tractor Operator	16.87
11330 - Trail Maintenance Worker	13.63***
11360 - Window Cleaner	14.52***
12000 - Health Occupations	17.02
	10 40
12010 - Ambulance Driver	19.42
12011 - Breath Alcohol Technician	20.50
12012 - Certified Occupational Therapist Assistant	31.53
12015 - Certified Physical Therapist Assistant	36.02
12020 - Dental Assistant	17.69
12025 - Dental Hygienist	37.33

12030 - EKG Technician		31.07
12035 - Electroneurodiagnostic Technologist		31.07
12040 - Emergency Medical Technician		19.42
12071 - Licensed Practical Nurse I		18.32
12072 - Licensed Practical Nurse II		20.50
12073 - Licensed Practical Nurse III		22.85
12100 - Medical Assistant		14.86*** 27.24
12130 - Medical Laboratory Technician 12160 - Medical Record Clerk		15.92
12190 - Medical Record Clerk 12190 - Medical Record Technician		17.80
12195 - Medical Transcriptionist		19.31
12210 - Nuclear Medicine Technologist		45.05
12221 - Nursing Assistant I		11.60***
12222 - Nursing Assistant II		13.04***
12223 - Nursing Assistant III		14.23***
12224 - Nursing Assistant IV		15.98
12235 - Optical Dispenser		15.35
12236 - Optical Technician		18.32
12250 - Pharmacy Technician		17.33
12280 - Phlebotomist		17.48
12305 - Radiologic Technologist		28.38
12311 - Registered Nurse I		24.38
12312 - Registered Nurse II		29.83
12313 - Registered Nurse II Specialist		29.83
12314 - Registered Nurse III		36.08
12315 - Registered Nurse III Anesthetist		36.08
12316 - Registered Nurse IV		43.26
12317 - Scheduler (Drug and Alcohol Testing) 12320 - Substance Abuse Treatment Counselor		25.40 20.97
13000 - Information And Arts Occupations		20.97
13011 - Exhibits Specialist I		20.93
13012 - Exhibits Specialist II		25.94
13013 - Exhibits Specialist III		31.73
13041 - Illustrator I		20.93
13042 - Illustrator II		25.94
13043 - Illustrator III		31.73
13047 - Librarian		28.72
13050 - Library Aide/Clerk		10.86***
13054 - Library Information Technology Systems		25.94
Administrator		
13058 - Library Technician		14.65***
13061 - Media Specialist I		18.71
13062 - Media Specialist II		20.93
13063 - Media Specialist III		23.34
13071 - Photographer I		18.71
13072 - Photographer II		20.93
13074 Photographer IV		25.94
13074 - Photographer IV 13075 - Photographer V		31.73 38.38
13075 - Photographer V 13090 - Technical Order Library Clerk		13.63***
13110 - Video Teleconference Technician		18.71
14000 - Information Technology Occupations		10.71
14041 - Computer Operator I		18.73
14042 - Computer Operator II		21.33
14043 - Computer Operator III		24.72
14044 - Computer Operator IV		27.48
14045 - Computer Operator V		30.43
14071 - Computer Programmer I	(see 1)	22.16
14072 - Computer Programmer II	(see 1)	
14073 - Computer Programmer III	(see 1)	
14074 - Computer Programmer IV	(see 1)	
14101 - Computer Systems Analyst I	(see 1)	
14102 - Computer Systems Analyst II	(see 1)	
14103 - Computer Systems Analyst III	(see 1)	

	- Peripheral Equipment Operator - Personal Computer Support Technician	18.73 27.48
	- System Support Specialist	32.02
15000 -	Instructional Occupations	
	- Aircrew Training Devices Instructor (Non-Rated)	33.36
	- Aircrew Training Devices Instructor (Rated) - Air Crew Training Devices Instructor (Pilot)	40.37 48.38
	- Computer Based Training Specialist / Instructor	33.36
	- Educational Technologist	34.32
	- Flight Instructor (Pilot)	48.38
	- Graphic Artist	19.41
	- Maintenance Test Pilot Fixed Jet/Prop	48.38
	- Maintenance Test Pilot Rotary Wing - Non-Maintenance Test/Co-Pilot	48.38 48.38
	- Technical Instructor	25.41
	- Technical Instructor/Course Developer	31.08
15110	- Test Proctor	20.51
	- Tutor	20.51
	Laundry Dry-Cleaning Pressing And Related Occupations	10.99***
	- Assembler - Counter Attendant	10.99***
	- Dry Cleaner	14.10***
	- Finisher Flatwork Machine	10.99***
16090	- Presser Hand	10.99***
	- Presser Machine Drycleaning	10.99***
	- Presser Machine Shirts	10.99***
	- Presser Machine Wearing Apparel Laundry - Sewing Machine Operator	10.99*** 14.91***
	- Tailor	16.05
	- Washer Machine	12.04***
19000 -	Machine Tool Operation And Repair Occupations	
	- Machine-Tool Operator (Tool Room)	26.20
	- Tool And Die Maker	31.22
	Materials Handling And Packing Occupations - Forklift Operator	17.09
	- Material Coordinator	28.88
	- Material Expediter	28.88
21050	- Material Handling Laborer	14.73***
	- Order Filler	14.03***
	- Production Line Worker (Food Processing)	17.09
	- Shipping Packer - Shipping/Receiving Clerk	17.17 17.17
	- Store Worker I	13.01***
	- Stock Clerk	18.83
21210	- Tools And Parts Attendant	17.09
	- Warehouse Specialist	17.09
	Mechanics And Maintenance And Repair Occupations	20.74
	- Aerospace Structural Welder - Aircraft Logs and Records Technician	28.74 22.63
	- Aircraft Mechanic I	27.20
	- Aircraft Mechanic II	28.74
	- Aircraft Mechanic III	29.58
	- Aircraft Mechanic Helper	18.94
	- Aircraft Painter - Aircraft Servicer	25.87 22.63
	- Aircraft Servicer - Aircraft Survival Flight Equipment Technician	25.87
23080	- Aircraft Worker	24.36
23091	- Aircrew Life Support Equipment (ALSE) Mechanic	24.36
I	7 (27 CT) 11 (27 CT) 11 (27 CT) 12 (27 CT) 1	0.5.00
23092 II	- Aircrew Life Support Equipment (ALSE) Mechanic	27.20
	- Appliance Mechanic	25.87
	- Bicycle Repairer	20.83
23125	- Cable Splicer	34.56

23130 - Carpenter Maintenance 23140 - Carpet Layer 23160 - Electrician Maintenance 23181 - Electronics Technician Maintenance I 23182 - Electronics Technician Maintenance II 23183 - Electronics Technician Maintenance III 23260 - Fabric Worker 23290 - Fire Alarm System Mechanic 23310 - Fire Extinguisher Repairer 23311 - Fuel Distribution System Mechanic 23312 - Fuel Distribution System Operator 23370 - General Maintenance Worker 23380 - Ground Support Equipment Mechanic 23381 - Ground Support Equipment Servicer 23382 - Ground Support Equipment Worker 23391 - Gunsmith II 23392 - Gunsmith II 23393 - Gunsmith III 23410 - Heating Ventilation And Air-Conditioning	26.71 24.36 28.26 33.36 35.86 37.74 22.63 24.40 20.83 29.52 23.78 18.53 27.20 22.63 24.36 20.56 24.06 27.20 28.87
Mechanic 23411 - Heating Ventilation And Air Contidioning	30.12
Mechanic (Research Facility)	
23430 - Heavy Equipment Mechanic	26.53
23440 - Heavy Equipment Operator	25.29
23460 - Instrument Mechanic	27.20
23465 - Laboratory/Shelter Mechanic	25.87
23470 - Laborer	14.73***
23510 - Locksmith	25.87
23530 - Machinery Maintenance Mechanic	31.99
23550 - Machinist Maintenance	26.58
23580 - Maintenance Trades Helper	16.35
23591 - Metrology Technician I	27.20
23592 - Metrology Technician II	28.38
23593 - Metrology Technician III	29.58 29.07
23640 - Millwright	19.25
23710 - Office Appliance Repairer 23760 - Painter Maintenance	19.25
23700 - Painter Maintenance 23790 - Pipefitter Maintenance	30.88
23810 - Plumber Maintenance	29.34
23820 - Pneudraulic Systems Mechanic	27.20
23850 - Rigger	30.48
23870 - Scale Mechanic	24.36
23890 - Sheet-Metal Worker Maintenance	27.80
23910 - Small Engine Mechanic	19.93
23931 - Telecommunications Mechanic I	32.90
23932 - Telecommunications Mechanic II	34.33
23950 - Telephone Lineman	31.00
23960 - Welder Combination Maintenance	26.26
23965 - Well Driller	26.89
23970 - Woodcraft Worker	27.20
23980 - Woodworker	20.83
24000 - Personal Needs Occupations	
24550 - Case Manager	17.48
24570 - Child Care Attendant	10.35***
24580 - Child Care Center Clerk	12.93***
24610 - Chore Aide	10.05***
24620 - Family Readiness And Support Services	17.48
Coordinator	_
24630 - Homemaker	17.48
25000 - Plant And System Operations Occupations	
25010 - Boiler Tender	27.14
25040 - Sewage Plant Operator	22.84
25070 - Stationary Engineer	27.14
25190 - Ventilation Equipment Tender	18.70

25210	- Water Treatment Plant Operator	22.84
	Protective Service Occupations	
	- Alarm Monitor	21.66
	- Baggage Inspector - Corrections Officer	12.94*** 25.55
	- Court Security Officer	29.08
	- Detection Dog Handler	14.48***
	- Detention Officer	25.55
27070	- Firefighter	29.08
	- Guard I	12.94***
	- Guard II	14.48***
	- Police Officer I - Police Officer II	31.08 34.54
	Recreation Occupations	34.34
	- Carnival Equipment Operator	12.80***
	- Carnival Equipment Repairer	14.07***
28043	- Carnival Worker	9.18***
	- Gate Attendant/Gate Tender	16.36
	- Lifeguard	14.58***
	- Park Attendant (Aide) - Recreation Aide/Health Facility Attendant	18.30 13.43***
	- Recreation Specialist	22.68
	- Sports Official	15.14
	- Swimming Pool Operator	16.46
	Stevedoring/Longshoremen Occupational Services	
	- Blocker And Bracer	31.79
	- Hatch Tender	31.79
	- Line Handler - Stevedore I	31.79 29.52
	- Stevedore II	34.17
	Technical Occupations	31.17
	- Air Traffic Control Specialist Center (HFO) (see 2)	41.27
	- Air Traffic Control Specialist Station (HFO) (see 2)	28.46
	- Air Traffic Control Specialist Terminal (HFO) (see 2)	31.33
	- Archeological Technician I	20.65
	- Archeological Technician II	23.11
	- Archeological Technician III - Cartographic Technician	28.62 28.62
	- Civil Engineering Technician	24.06
	- Cryogenic Technician I	31.70
	- Cryogenic Technician II	35.01
	- Drafter/CAD Operator I	20.65
	- Drafter/CAD Operator II	23.11
	- Drafter/CAD Operator III	25.76
	- Drafter/CAD Operator IV - Engineering Technician I	31.70 16.51
	- Engineering Technician II	18.53
	- Engineering Technician III	20.73
	- Engineering Technician IV	25.69
30085	- Engineering Technician V	31.42
	- Engineering Technician VI	38.01
	- Environmental Technician	28.62
	- Evidence Control Specialist - Laboratory Technician	27.62 35.78
	- Latent Fingerprint Technician I	31.70
	- Latent Fingerprint Technician II	35.01
	- Mathematical Technician	28.62
	- Paralegal/Legal Assistant I	20.40
	- Paralegal/Legal Assistant II	25.27
	- Paralegal/Legal Assistant III	30.91
	- Paralegal/Legal Assistant IV - Petroleum Supply Specialist	37.40 35.01
	- Photo-Optics Technician	28.62
	- Radiation Control Technician	35.01

30461 - Technical Writer I	28.62
30462 - Technical Writer II	35.01
30463 - Technical Writer III	42.36
30491 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician I	26.22
30492 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician II	31.73
30493 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician III	38.03
30494 - Unexploded (UXO) Safety Escort	26.22
30495 - Unexploded (UXO) Sweep Personnel	26.22
30501 - Weather Forecaster I	31.70
30502 - Weather Forecaster II	38.56
30620 - Weather Observer Combined Upper Air Or (see 2)	25.76
Surface Programs	
30621 - Weather Observer Senior (see 2)	28.62
31000 - Transportation/Mobile Equipment Operation Occupations	
31010 - Airplane Pilot	31.73
31020 - Bus Aide	12.84***
31030 - Bus Driver	18.99
31043 - Driver Courier	14.62***
31260 - Parking and Lot Attendant	11.35***
31290 - Shuttle Bus Driver	14.03***
31310 - Taxi Driver	12.47***
31361 - Truckdriver Light	16.08
31362 - Truckdriver Medium	17.48
31363 - Truckdriver Heavy	22.11
31364 - Truckdriver Tractor-Trailer	22.11
99000 - Miscellaneous Occupations	
99020 - Cabin Safety Specialist	15.47
99030 - Cashier	11.32***
99050 - Desk Clerk	11.26***
99095 - Embalmer	27.04
99130 - Flight Follower	26.22
99251 - Laboratory Animal Caretaker I	20.73
99252 - Laboratory Animal Caretaker II	22.80
99260 - Marketing Analyst	30.07
99310 - Mortician	27.04
99410 - Pest Controller	18.21
99510 - Photofinishing Worker	13.78***
99710 - Recycling Laborer	21.03
99711 - Recycling Specialist	26.03
99730 - Refuse Collector	18.68
99810 - Sales Clerk	12.69***
99820 - School Crossing Guard	12.13***
99830 - Survey Party Chief	28.66
99831 - Surveying Aide	16.30
99832 - Surveying Technician	21.38
99840 - Vending Machine Attendant	19.71
99841 - Vending Machine Repairer	25.37
99842 - Vending Machine Repairer Helper	19.71
<del>-</del>	

\*\*\*Workers in this classification may be entitled to a higher minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 (\$15.00 per hour) or 13658 (\$11.25 per hour). Please see the Note at the top of the wage determination for more information. Please also note that the minimum wage requirements of Executive Order 14026 and 13658 are not currently being enforced as to contracts or contract-like instruments entered into with the federal government in connection with seasonal recreational services or seasonal recreational equipment rental for the general public on federal lands.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706 Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Service Contract Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their

own illness injury or other health-related needs including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill injured or has other health-related needs including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is the victim of domestic violence sexual assault or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

ALL OCCUPATIONS LISTED ABOVE RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING BENEFITS:

HEALTH & WELFARE: \$4.80 per hour up to 40 hours per week or \$192.00 per week or \$832.00 per month

HEALTH & WELFARE EO 13706: \$4.41 per hour up to 40 hours per week or \$176.40 per week or \$764.40 per month\*

\*This rate is to be used only when compensating employees for performance on an SCA-covered contract also covered by EO 13706 Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors. A contractor may not receive credit toward its SCA obligations for any paid sick leave provided pursuant to EO 13706.

VACATION: 2 weeks paid vacation after 1 year of service with a contractor or successor; 3 weeks after 10 years and 4 after 20 years. Length of service includes the whole span of continuous service with the present contractor or successor wherever employed and with the predecessor contractors in the performance of similar work at the same Federal facility. (Reg. 29 CFR 4.173)

HOLIDAYS: A minimum of eleven paid holidays per year: New Year's Day Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday Washington's Birthday Memorial Day Juneteenth National Independence Day Independence Day Labor Day Columbus Day Veterans' Day Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. (A contractor may substitute for any of the named holidays another day off with pay in accordance with a plan communicated to the employees involved.) (See 29 CFR 4.174)

THE OCCUPATIONS WHICH HAVE NUMBERED FOOTNOTES IN PARENTHESES RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING:

1) COMPUTER EMPLOYEES: This wage determination does not apply to any individual employed in a bona fide executive administrative or professional capacity as defined in 29 C.F.R. Part 541. (See 41 C.F.R. 6701(3)). Because most Computer Systems Analysts and Computer Programmers who are paid at least \$27.63 per hour (or at least \$684 per week if paid on a salary or fee basis) likely qualify as exempt computer professionals under 29 U.S.C. 213(a)(1) and 29 U.S.C. 213(a)(17) this wage determination may not include wage rates for all occupations within those job families. In such instances a conformance will be necessary if there are nonexempt employees in these job families working on the contract.

Job titles vary widely and change quickly in the computer industry and are not determinative of whether an employee is an exempt computer professional. To be exempt computer employees who satisfy the compensation requirements must also have a primary duty that consists of:

- (1) The application of systems analysis techniques and procedures including consulting with users to determine hardware software or system functional specifications;
- (2) The design development documentation analysis creation testing or modification of computer systems or programs including prototypes based on and related to user or system design specifications;
- (3) The design documentation testing creation or modification of computer programs related to machine operating systems; or

(4) A combination of the aforementioned duties the performance of which requires the same level of skills. (29 C.F.R. 541.400).

Any computer employee who meets the applicable compensation requirements and the above duties test qualifies as an exempt computer professional under both section 13(a)(1) and section 13(a)(17) of the Fair Labor Standards Act. (Field Assistance Bulletin No. 2006-3 (Dec. 14 2006)). Accordingly this wage determination will not apply to any exempt computer employee regardless of which of these two exemptions is utilized.

2) AIR TRAFFIC CONTROLLERS AND WEATHER OBSERVERS - NIGHT PAY & SUNDAY PAY: If you work at night as part of a regular tour of duty you will earn a night differential and receive an additional 10% of basic pay for any hours worked between 6pm and 6am. If you are a full-time employed (40 hours a week) and Sunday is part of your regularly scheduled workweek you are paid at your rate of basic pay plus a Sunday premium of 25% of your basic rate for each hour of Sunday work which is not overtime (i.e. occasional work on Sunday outside the normal tour of duty is considered overtime work).

#### \*\* HAZARDOUS PAY DIFFERENTIAL \*\*

An 8 percent differential is applicable to employees employed in a position that represents a high degree of hazard when working with or in close proximity to ordnance explosives and incendiary materials. This includes work such as screening blending dying mixing and pressing of sensitive ordnance explosives and pyrotechnic compositions such as lead azide black powder and photoflash powder. All dry-house activities involving propellants or explosives. Demilitarization modification renovation demolition and maintenance operations on sensitive ordnance explosives and incendiary materials. All operations involving re-grading and cleaning of artillery ranges.

A 4 percent differential is applicable to employees employed in a position that represents a low degree of hazard when working with or in close proximity to ordnance (or employees possibly adjacent to) explosives and incendiary materials which involves potential injury such as laceration of hands face or arms of the employee engaged in the operation irritation of the skin minor burns and the like; minimal damage to immediate or adjacent work area or equipment being used. All operations involving unloading storage and hauling of ordnance explosive and incendiary ordnance material other than small arms ammunition. These differentials are only applicable to work that has been specifically designated by the agency for ordnance explosives and incendiary material differential pay.

#### \*\* UNIFORM ALLOWANCE \*\*

If employees are required to wear uniforms in the performance of this contract (either by the terms of the Government contract by the employer by the state or local law etc.) the cost of furnishing such uniforms and maintaining (by laundering or dry cleaning) such uniforms is an expense that may not be borne by an employee where such cost reduces the hourly rate below that required by the wage determination. The Department of Labor will accept payment in accordance with the following standards as compliance:

The contractor or subcontractor is required to furnish all employees with an adequate number of uniforms without cost or to reimburse employees for the actual cost of the uniforms. In addition where uniform cleaning and maintenance is made the responsibility of the employee all contractors and subcontractors subject to this wage determination shall (in the absence of a bona fide collective bargaining agreement providing for a different amount or the furnishing of contrary affirmative proof as to the actual cost) reimburse all employees for such cleaning and maintenance at a rate of \$3.35 per week (or \$.67 cents per day). However in those instances where the uniforms furnished are made of ""wash and wear"" materials may be routinely washed and dried with other personal garments and do

not require any special treatment such as dry cleaning daily washing or commercial laundering in order to meet the cleanliness or appearance standards set by the terms of the Government contract by the contractor by law or by the nature of the work there is no requirement that employees be reimbursed for uniform maintenance costs.

#### \*\* SERVICE CONTRACT ACT DIRECTORY OF OCCUPATIONS \*\*

The duties of employees under job titles listed are those described in the ""Service Contract Act Directory of Occupations"" Fifth Edition (Revision 1) dated September 2015 unless otherwise indicated.

\*\* REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION OF ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE RATE Standard Form 1444 (SF-1444) \*\*

#### Conformance Process:

The contracting officer shall require that any class of service employee which is not listed herein and which is to be employed under the contract (i.e. the work to be performed is not performed by any classification listed in the wage determination) be classified by the contractor so as to provide a reasonable relationship (i.e. appropriate level of skill comparison) between such unlisted classifications and the classifications listed in the wage determination (See 29 CFR 4.6(b)(2)(i)). Such conforming procedures shall be initiated by the contractor prior to the performance of contract work by such unlisted class(es) of employees (See 29 CFR 4.6(b)(2)(ii)). The Wage and Hour Division shall make a final determination of conformed classification wage rate and/or fringe benefits which shall be paid to all employees performing in the classification from the first day of work on which contract work is performed by them in the classification. Failure to pay such unlisted employees the compensation agreed upon by the interested parties and/or fully determined by the Wage and Hour Division retroactive to the date such class of employees commenced contract work shall be a violation of the Act and this contract. (See 29 CFR 4.6(b)(2)(v)). When multiple wage determinations are included in a contract a separate SF-1444 should be prepared for each wage determination to which a class(es) is to be conformed.

The process for preparing a conformance request is as follows:

- 1) When preparing the bid the contractor identifies the need for a conformed occupation(s) and computes a proposed rate(s).
- 2) After contract award the contractor prepares a written report listing in order the proposed classification title(s) a Federal grade equivalency (FGE) for each proposed classification(s) job description(s) and rationale for proposed wage rate(s) including information regarding the agreement or disagreement of the authorized representative of the employees involved or where there is no authorized representative the employees themselves. This report should be submitted to the contracting officer no later than 30 days after such unlisted class(es) of employees performs any contract work.
- 3) The contracting officer reviews the proposed action and promptly submits a report of the action together with the agency's recommendations and pertinent information including the position of the contractor and the employees to the U.S. Department of Labor Wage and Hour Division for review (See 29 CFR 4.6(b)(2)(ii)).
- 4) Within 30 days of receipt the Wage and Hour Division approves modifies or disapproves the action via transmittal to the agency contracting officer or notifies the contracting officer that additional time will be required to process the request.
- 5) The contracting officer transmits the Wage and Hour Division's decision to the contractor.

6) Each affected employee shall be furnished by the contractor with a written copy of such determination or it shall be posted as a part of the wage determination (See 29 CFR 4.6 (b) (2) (iii)).

Information required by the Regulations must be submitted on SF-1444 or bond paper.

When preparing a conformance request the ""Service Contract Act Directory of Occupations"" should be used to compare job definitions to ensure that duties requested are not performed by a classification already listed in the wage determination. Remember it is not the job title but the required tasks that determine whether a class is included in an established wage determination. Conformances may not be used to artificially split combine or subdivide classifications listed in the wage determination (See 29 CFR 4.152(c)(1))."

END OF GENERAL DECISION

#### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

#### 1. Definitions

Whenever used in any of the contract Documents, the following meanings shall be given to the terms here in defined:

- a) The term "Contract" means the Contract executed between the <u>Sabine River Authority of Texas and Sabine River Authority, State of Louisiana</u> hereinafter called the Owner and \_\_\_\_\_\_\_, hereinafter called Contractor, of which these General Conditions, form a part.
- b) The term "Project Area" means the area within which are the specified Contract limits of the Improvements contemplated to be constructed in whole or in part under this contract.
- c) The term "Engineer" means the Owner's Engineer in charge, serving the Owner with architectural or engineering services, his successor, or any other person or persons, employed by the Owner for the purpose of directing or having in charge the work embraced in this Contract.
- d) The term "Contract Documents" means and shall include the following: Executed Contract, Addenda (if any), Invitation for Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Signed Copy of Bid, General Conditions, Special Conditions, Technical Specifications, and Drawings.

#### 2. Supervision By Contractor

- a) Except where the Contractor is an individual and gives his personal supervision to the work, the Contractor shall provide a competent superintendent, satisfactory to the Owner and the Engineer, on the work at all times during working hours with full authority to act for him. The Contractor shall also provide an adequate staff for the proper coordination and expediting of his work.
- b) The Contractor shall lay out his own work and he shall be responsible for all work executed by him under the Contract. He shall verify all figures and elevations before proceeding with the work and will be held responsible for any error resulting from his failure to do so.

#### 3. Subcontracts

- a) The Contractor shall not execute an agreement with any subcontractor or permit any subcontractor to perform any work included in this Contract until he has verified the subcontractor is acceptable with the Owner.
- b) No proposed subcontractor shall be disapproved by the Owner except for cause.
- c) The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them.
- d) The Contractor shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts relative to the work and required compliance by each subcontractor with the applicable provisions of the Contract.
- Nothing contained in the Contract shall create any contractual relation between any subcontractor and the Owner.

#### 4. Payments to Contractor

#### a) Partial Payments

• The Contractor shall prepare his requisition for partial payment as of the last day of the month and submit it, with the required number of copies, to the Owner for his approval. The amount of the payment due the Contractor shall be determined by adding to the total value of work completed to date, the value of materials properly stored on the site and deducting (1) retainage and (2) the amount of all previous

payments. The total value of work completed to date shall be based on the estimated quantities of work completed and on the unit prices contained in the agreement. The value of materials properly stored on the site shall be based upon the estimated quantities of such materials and the invoice prices. Copies of all invoices shall be available for inspection of the Engineer.

- The Contractor shall be responsible for the care and protection of all materials and work upon which
  payments have been made until final acceptance of such work and materials by the Owner. Such
  payments shall not constitute a waiver of the right of the Owner to require the fulfillment of all terms of
  the Contract and the delivery of all improvements embraced in this contract complete and satisfactory to
  the Owner in all details.
- Retainage shall be ten percent (10%) of the amount otherwise due until at least fifty percent of the work has been completed. After the project is fifty percent completed, and the Owner finds that satisfactory progress is being made, then the Owner may authorize any of the remaining progress payments to be made in full. The Owner is not obligated to pay interest earned on the first 50% of work completed (Texas Water Code 49.276(d))
- Monthly or partial payments made by the Owner to the Contractor are moneys advanced for the purpose of assisting the Contractor to expedite the work of construction. The Contractor shall be responsible for the care and protection of all materials and work upon which payments have been made until final acceptance of such work and materials by the Owner. Such payments shall not constitute a waiver of the right of the Owner to require the fulfillment of all terms of the Contract and the delivery of all improvements embraced in this Contract complete and satisfactory to the Owner in all details.

#### b) Final Payment

- After final inspection and acceptance by the Owner of all work under the Contract, the Contractor shall prepare his requisition for final payment which shall be based upon the careful inspection of each item of work at the applicable unit prices stipulated in the Agreement. The total amount of the final payment due the Contractor under this contract shall be the amount computed as described above less all previous payments.
- The Owner before paying the final estimate shall require the Contractor to furnish releases or receipts from all subcontractors having performed any work and all persons having supplied materials, equipment (installed on the Project) and services to the Contractor, if the Owner deems it necessary in order to protect its interest. The Owner may, if it deems such action advisable, make payment in part or in full to the Contractor without requiring the furnishing of such releases or receipts and any payments made shall in no way impair the obligations of any surety or sureties furnished under this Contract.
- Any amount due the Owner under Liquidated Damages, shall be deducted from the final payment due the contractor.

#### c) Payments Subject to Submission of Certificates

Each payment to the Contractor by the Owner shall be made subject to submission by the Contractor of all written certifications required of him and his subcontractors.

### d) Withholding Payments

The Owner may withhold from any payment due the Contractor whatever is deemed necessary to protect the Owner, and if so elects, may also withhold any amounts due from the Contractor to any subcontractors or material dealers, for work performed or material furnished by them. The foregoing provisions shall be construed solely for the benefit of the Owner and will not require the Owner to determine or adjust any claims or disputes between the Contractor and his subcontractors or material dealers, or to withhold any moneys for their protection unless the Owner elects to do so. The failure or refusal of the Owner to withhold any moneys from the Contractor shall in no way impair the obligations of any surety or sureties under any bond or bonds furnished under this Contract.

#### 5. Progress and Payment Schedule

The Contractor shall submit for approval immediately after execution of the Agreement, a carefully prepared Progress Schedule, showing the proposed dates of starting and completing each of the various sections of the work and the accumulated percent of progress each month.

#### 6. Changes in the Work

- a) The Owner may make changes in the scope of work required to be performed by the Contractor under the Contract without relieving or releasing the Contractor from any of his obligations under the Contract or any guarantee given by him pursuant to the Contract provisions, and without affecting the validity of the guaranty bonds, and without relieving or releasing the surety or sureties of said bonds. All such work shall be executed under the terms of the original Contract unless it is expressly provided otherwise.
- b) Except for the purpose of affording protection against any emergency endangering health, life, limb or property, the Contractor shall make no change in the materials used or in the specified manner of constructing and/or installing the improvements or supply additional labor, services or materials beyond that actually required for the execution of the Contract, unless in pursuance of a written order from the Owner authorizing the Contractor to proceed with the change. No claim for an adjustment of the Contract Price will be valid unless so ordered.
- c) If applicable unit prices are contained in the Agreement, the Owner may order the Contractor to proceed with desired unit prices specified in the Contract; provided that in case of a unit price contract the net value of all changes does not increase the original total amount of the agreement by more than twenty-five percent (25%) in accordance with Chapter 49.273(i) of the Texas Water Code.
- d) Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the adjustments in contract price and/or contact time stipulated in a Change Order represent full compensation for all increases or decreases in the cost of, or the time required to perform the entire work under the Contract, arising directly or indirectly from such Change Order. Acceptance of this waiver constitutes an agreement between the Owner and Contractor that each Change Order represents an all-inclusive, mutually agreed on adjustment to the Contract, and the Contractor will waive all rights to file a claim on Change Orders after they are properly executed.
- e) Each change order shall include in its final form:
  - A detailed description of the change in the work.
  - The Contractor's proposal (if any) or a confirmed copy thereof.
  - A definite statement as to the resulting change in the contract price and/or time.
  - The statement that all work involved in the change shall be performed in accordance with contract requirements except as modified by the change order.
  - The procedures as outlined in this Section for a unit price contract also apply in any lump sum contract.

#### 7. Claims for Extra Cost

- a) If the Contractor claims that any instructions by Drawings or otherwise involve extra cost or extension of time, he shall, within ten days after the receipt of such instructions, and in any event before proceeding to execute the work, submit his protest thereto in writing to the Owner, stating clearly and in detail the basis of his objections. No such claim will be considered unless so made.
- b) Claims for additional compensation for extra work, due to alleged errors in ground elevations, contour lines, or bench marks, will not be recognized unless accompanied by certified survey data, made prior to the time the original ground was disturbed, clearly showing that errors exist which resulted, or would result, in handling more material, or performing more work, than would be reasonably estimated from the Drawings and maps issued.
- c) Any discrepancies which may be discovered between actual conditions and those represented by the Drawings and maps shall be reported at once to the Owner and work shall not proceed except at the Contractor's risk, until written instructions have been received by him from the Owner.

d) If, on the basis of the available evidence, the Owner determines that an adjustment of the Contract Price and/or time is justifiable, a change order shall be executed.

#### 8. Termination, Delays, and Liquidated Damages

a) Right of the Owner to Terminate Contract.

In the event that any of the provisions of this contract are violated by the Contractor, or by any of his subcontractors, the Owner may serve written notice upon the Contractor and the Surety of its intention to terminate the contract. The notices shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate the contract, and unless such violation or delay shall cease, and satisfactory arrangement of correction be made within ten days, the contract shall, upon the expiration of said ten (10) days, cease and terminate. In the event of any such termination, the Owner shall immediately serve notice thereof upon the Surety and the Contractor. The Surety shall have the right to take over and perform the contract. Provided, however, that if the Surety does not commence performance thereof within ten (10) days from the date of the mailing to such Surety of notice of termination, the Owner may take over the work and complete the project by bid/contract or by force account at the expense of the Contractor and his Surety shall be liable to the Owner for any excess cost incurred. In such event the Owner may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, and plant as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore.

#### b) Liquidated Damages for Delays.

If the work is not completed within the time stipulated in the applicable bid for Lump Sum or Unit Price Contract provided, the Contractor shall pay to the Owner as fixed, agreed, and liquidated damages (it being impossible to determine the actual damages occasioned by the delay) the amount of \$300 for each calendar day of delay, until the work is completed. The Contractor and his sureties shall be liable to the Owner for the amount thereof.

#### c) Excusable Delays.

- The right of the Contractor to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall the Contractor be charged with liquidated damages for any delays in the completion of the work due to:
- Any acts of the Government, including controls or restrictions upon or requisitioning of materials, equipment, tools, or labor by reason of war, national defense, or any other national emergency;
- Any acts of the Owner;
- Causes not reasonably foreseeable by the parties to this Contract at the time of the execution of the
  Contract which are beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor, including,
  but not restricted to, acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of another Contractor in the performance
  of some other contract with the Owner, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine, restrictions, strikes, freight
  embargoes, and weather of unusual severity such as hurricanes, tornadoes, cyclones and other extreme
  weather conditions.
- Provided, however, that the Contractor promptly notifies the Owner within ten (10) days in writing of the cause of the delay. Upon receipt of such notification, the Owner shall ascertain the facts and the cause and extent of delay. If, upon the basis of the facts and the terms of this contract, the delay is properly excusable, the Owner shall extend the time for completing the work for a period of time commensurate with the period of excusable delay.

#### 9. Contract Period

The Contractor shall commence work within ten (10) days after ordered to proceed and shall prosecute the work systematically and energetically so that all of his work will be completed within the contract time as stipulated.

The Engineer, on reasonable notice in writing to the Contractor may stop any portion of the work, if in his judgment, the weather or other conditions, such as labor troubles, poor materials, improper construction methods, noncompliance with plans and specifications, prevent the work from being properly done.

For delays occasioned by any act, neglect or default of the Owner, the Owner shall not be held liable for damages on account thereof, but an extension of time shall be granted to the Contractor for the completion of this contract, equivalent to the delays so caused.

#### 10. Assignment or Novation

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer, whether by an assignment or novation, any of its rights, duties, benefits, obligations, liabilities, or responsibilities under this Contract without the written consent of the Owner; provided, however, that assignments to banks or other financial institutions may be made without the consent of the Owner. No assignment or novation of this Contract shall be valid unless the assignment or novation expressly provides that the assignment of any of the Contractor's rights or benefits under the Contract is subject to a prior lien for labor performed, services rendered, and materials, tools, and equipment supplied for the performance of the work under this Contract in favor of all persons, firms, or corporations rendering such labor or services or supplying such materials, tools, or equipment.

#### 11. <u>Disputes</u>

- a) All disputes arising under this Contract or its interpretation except those disputes covered by FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS whether involving law or fact or both, or extra work, and all claims for alleged breach of contract shall, within ten (10) days of commencement of the dispute, be presented by the Contractor to the Owner for decision. Any claim not presented within the time limit specified in this paragraph shall be deemed to have been waived, except that if the claim is of a continuing character and notice of the claim is not given within ten (10) days of its commencement, the claim will be considered only for a period commencing ten (10) days prior to the receipt of the Owner.
- b) The Contractor shall submit in detail his claim and his proof thereof.
- c) If the Contractor does not agree with any decision of the Owner, he shall in no case allow the dispute to delay the work but shall notify the Owner promptly that he is proceeding with the work under protest.

#### 12. Technical Specifications and Drawings

Anything mentioned in the Technical Specifications and not shown on the Drawings or vice versa, shall be of like effect as if shown on or mentioned in both. In case of difference between Drawings and Technical Specifications, the Technical Specifications shall govern. In case of any discrepancy in Drawings, or Technical Specifications, the matter shall be immediately submitted to the Owner, without whose decision, said discrepancy shall not be adjusted by the Contractor, save only at his own risk and expense.

#### 13. Shop Drawings

- a) All required shop drawings, machinery details, layout drawings, etc. shall be submitted to the Engineer in 5 copies for review sufficiently in advance of requirements to afford ample time for checking, including time for correcting, resubmitting and rechecking if necessary. The Contractor may proceed, only at his own risk, with manufacture or installation of any equipment or work covered by said shop drawings, etc. until they are reviewed and no claim, by the Contractor, for extension of the contract time shall be granted by reason of his failure in this respect.
- b) Any drawings submitted without the Contractor's stamp of approval will not be considered and will be returned to him for proper resubmission. If any drawings show variations from the requirements of the Contract because of standard shop practice or other reason, the Contractor shall make specific mention of such variation in his letter of transmittal in order that, if acceptable, suitable action may be taken for proper adjustment of contract price and/or time, otherwise the Contractor will not be relieved of the responsibility for executing the work in accordance with the Contract even though the drawings have been reviewed.

c) If a shop drawing is in accordance with the contract or involves only a minor adjustment in the interest of the Owner not involving a change in contract price or time; the engineer may review the drawing. The review shall not relieve the Contractor from his responsibility for adherence to the contract or for any error in the drawing.

#### 14. Requests for Supplementary Information

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to make timely requests of the Owner for any additional information not already in his possession which should be furnished by the Owner under the terms of this Contract, and which he will require in the planning and execution of the work. Such requests may be submitted from time to time as the need approaches, but each shall be filed in ample time to permit appropriate action to be taken by all parties involved so as to avoid delay. Each request shall be in writing and list the various items and the latest date by which each will be required by the Contractor. The first list shall be submitted within two weeks after Contract award and shall be as complete as possible at that time. The Contractor shall, if requested, furnish promptly any assistance and information the Engineer may require in responding to these requests of the Contractor. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for any delay in his work or to others arising from his failure to comply fully with the provision of this section.

# 15. Materials and Workmanship

- a) Unless otherwise specifically provided for in the technical specifications, all workmanship, equipment, materials and articles incorporated in the work shall be new and the best grade of the respective kinds for the purpose. Where equipment, materials, articles or workmanship are referred to in the technical specifications as "equal to" any particular standard, the Engineer shall decide the question of equality.
- b) The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner for approval the manufacturer's detailed specifications for all machinery, mechanical and other special equipment, which he contemplates installing together with full information as to type, performance characteristics, and all other pertinent information as required, and shall likewise submit for approval full information concerning all other materials or articles which he proposes to incorporate.
- c) Machinery, mechanical and other equipment, materials or articles installed or used without such prior approval shall be at the risk of subsequent rejection.
- d) Materials specified by reference to the number or symbol of a specific standard, shall comply with requirements in the latest revision thereof and any amendment or supplement thereto in effect on the date of the Invitation for Bids, except as limited to type, class or grade, or modified in the technical specifications shall have full force and effect as though printed therein.
- e) The Owner may require the Contractor to dismiss from the work such employee or employees as the Owner or the Engineer may deem incompetent, or careless, or insubordinate.

#### 16. Samples, Certificates and Tests

- a) The Contractor shall submit all material or equipment samples, certificates, affidavits, etc., as called for in the contract documents or required by the Engineer, promptly after award of the contract and acceptance of the Contractor's bond. No such material or equipment shall be manufactured or delivered to the site, except at the Contractor's own risk, until the required samples or certificates have been approved in writing by the Engineer. Any delay in the work caused by late or improper submission of samples or certificates for approval shall not be considered just cause for an extension of the contract time.
- b) Each sample submitted by the Contractor shall carry a label giving the name of the Contractor, the project for which it is intended, and the name of the producer. The accompanying certificate or letter from the Contractor shall state that the sample complies with contract requirements, shall give the name and brand of the product, its place of origin, the name and address of the producer and all specifications or other detailed information which will assist the Engineer in making a prompt decision regarding the acceptability of the

- sample. It shall also include the statement that all materials or equipment furnished for use in the project will comply with the samples and/or certified statements.
- c) Approval of any materials shall be general only and shall not constitute a waiver of the Owner's right to demand full compliance with Contract requirements. After actual deliveries, the Engineer will have such check tests made as he deems necessary in each instance and may reject materials and equipment and accessories for cause, even though such materials and articles have been given general approval. If materials, equipment or accessories which fail to meet check tests have been incorporated in the work, the Engineer will have the right to cause their removal and replacement by proper materials or to demand and secure such reparation by the Contractor as is equitable.

#### 17. Permits and Codes

- a) The Contractor shall give all notices required by and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of the Local Government. All construction work and/or utility installations shall comply with all applicable ordinances, and codes including all written waivers. Before installing any work, the Contractor shall examine the drawings and technical specifications for compliance with applicable ordinances and codes and shall immediately report any discrepancy to the Owner. Where the requirements of the drawings and technical specifications fail to comply with such applicable ordinances or codes, the Owner will adjust the Contract by Change Order to conform to such ordinances or codes (unless waivers in writing covering the difference have been granted by the governing body or department) and make appropriate adjustment in the Contract Price or stipulated unit prices.
- b) Should the Contractor fail to observe the foregoing provisions and proceed with the construction and/or install any utility at variance with any applicable ordinance or code, including any written waivers (notwithstanding the fact that such installation is in compliance with the drawings and technical specifications), the Contractor shall remove such work without cost to the Owner.
- c) The Contractor shall at his own expense, secure and pay for all permits for street pavement, sidewalks, shed, removal of abandoned water taps, sealing of house connection drains, pavement cuts, buildings, electrical, plumbing, water, gas and sewer permits required by the local regulatory body or any of its agencies.
- d) The Contractor shall comply with applicable local laws and ordinances governing the disposal of surplus excavation, materials, debris and rubbish on or off the Project Area and commit no trespass on any public or private property in any operation due to or connected with the Improvements contained in this Contract.
- e) The Contractor will be required to make arrangements for and pay the water, electrical power, or any other utilities required during construction.
- f) During construction of this project, the Contractor shall use every means possible to control the amount of dust created by construction. Prior to the close of a day's work, the Contractor, if directed by the Owner, shall moisten the ground and surrounding area to prevent a dusty condition.

#### 18. Care of Work

- a) The Contractor shall be responsible for all damages to person or property that occur as a result of his fault or negligence in connection with the prosecution of the work and shall be responsible for the proper care and protection of all materials delivered and work performed until completion and final acceptance.
- b) The Contractor shall provide sufficient competent watchmen, both day and night, including Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, from the time the work is commenced until final completion and acceptance.
- c) In an emergency affecting the safety of life, limb or property, including adjoining property, the Contractor, without special instructions or authorization from the Owner is authorized to act at his discretion to prevent such threatened loss or injury, and he shall so act. He shall likewise act if instructed to do so by the Owner.

- d) The Contractor shall avoid damage as a result of his operations to existing sidewalks, streets, curbs, pavements, utilities (except those which are to be replaced or removed), adjoining property, etc., and he shall at his own expense completely repair any damage thereto caused by his operations.
- The Contractor shall shore up, brace, underpin, secure, and protect as maybe necessary, all foundations and other parts of existing structures adjacent to, adjoining, and in the vicinity of the site, which may be in any way affected by the excavations or other operations connected with the construction of the improvements included in this Contract. The Contractor shall be responsible for the giving of any and all required notices to any adjoining or adjacent property Owner or other party before the commencement of any work. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner from any damages on account of settlements or the loss of lateral support of adjoining property and from all loss or expense and all damages for which the Owner may become liable in consequence of such injury or damage to adjoining and adjacent structures and their premises.

# 19. Accident Prevention

- a) No laborer or mechanic employed in the performance of this Contract shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health or safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor.
- b) The Contractor shall exercise proper precaution at all times for the protection of persons and property and shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property, either on or off the site, which occur as a result of his prosecution of the work.
- c) The Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of all cases of death, occupational disease, or injury requiring medical attention or causing loss of time from work, arising out of and in the course of employment on work under the Contract. The Contractor shall promptly furnish the Owner with reports concerning these matters.
- d) The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner from any claims for damages resulting from property damage, personal injury and/or death suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person as a result of any work conducted under this contract.
- e) The Contractor shall provide trench safety for all excavations more than five feet deep prior to excavation. House Bill 1569 concerning trench safety legislation are made a part of these contract documents for Contractor's reference. All OSHA Standards for trench safety must be adhered to by the Contractor.
- f) The Contractor shall at all-time conduct his work in such a manner as to insure the least possible inconvenience to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. At the close of the work each day, all streets where possible in the opinion of the city/county, shall be opened to the public in order that persons living in the area may have access to their homes or businesses by the use of the streets. Barricades, warning signs, and necessary lighting shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Owner at the expense of the Contractor.

#### 20. Use of Premises

- a) The Contractor shall confine his equipment, storage of materials, and construction operations to the contract limits as shown on the drawings and as prescribed by ordinances or permits, or as may be desired by the Owner, and shall not unreasonably encumber the site or public rights of way with his materials and construction equipment.
- b) The Contractor shall comply with all reasonable instructions of the Owner and all existing state and local regulations regarding signs, advertising, traffic, fires, explosives, danger signals, and barricades.

#### 21. Removal of Debris, Cleaning, Etc.

The Contractor shall, periodically or as directed during the progress of the work, remove and legally dispose of all surplus excavated material and debris, and keep the Project Area and public rights of way reasonably clear.

Upon completion of the work, he shall remove all temporary construction facilities, debris and unused materials provided for work, and put the whole site of the work and public rights of way in a neat and clean condition.

#### 22. Inspection

- a) All materials and workmanship shall be subject to inspection, examination, or test by the Owner and Engineer at any and all times during manufacture or construction and at any and all places where such manufacture or construction occurs. The Owner shall have the right to reject defective material and workmanship or require its correction. Unacceptable workmanship shall be satisfactorily corrected. Rejected material shall be promptly segregated and removed from the Project Area and replaced with material of specified quality without charge. If the Contractor fails to proceed at once with the correction of rejected workmanship or defective material, the Owner may by contract or otherwise have the defects remedied or rejected materials removed from the Project Area and charge the cost of the same against any Monies which may be due the Contractor, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Owner.
- b) The Contractor shall furnish promptly all materials reasonably necessary for any tests which may be required. All tests by the Owner will be performed in such manner as not to delay the work unnecessarily and will be made in accordance with the provisions of the technical specifications.
- c) The Contractor shall notify the Owner sufficiently in advance of back filling or concealing any facilities to permit proper inspection. If any facilities are concealed without approval or consent of the Owner, the Contractor shall uncover for inspection and recover such facilities at his own expense, when so requested by the Owner.
- d) Should it be considered necessary or advisable by the Owner at any time before final acceptance of the entire work to make an examination of work already completed by uncovering the same, the Contractor shall on request promptly furnish all necessary facilities, labor, and material. If such work is found to be defective in any important or essential respect, due to fault of the Contractor or his subcontractors, the Contractor shall defray all the expenses of such examination and of satisfactory reconstruction. If, however, such work is found to meet the requirements of the Contract, the actual cost of labor and material necessarily involved in the examination and replacement, shall be allowed the Contractor and he shall, in addition, if completion of the work of the entire Contract has been delayed thereby, be granted a suitable extension of time on account of the additional work involved.
- e) Inspection of materials and appurtenances to be incorporated in the improvements included in this Contract may be made at the place of production, manufacture or shipment, whenever the quantity justifies it, and such inspection and acceptance, unless otherwise stated in the technical specifications, shall be final, except as regards (1) latent defects, (2) departures from specific requirements of the Contract, (3) damage or loss in transit, or (4) fraud or such gross mistakes as amount to fraud. Subject to the requirements contained in the preceding sentence, the inspection of materials as a whole or in part will be made at the Project Site.
- f) Neither inspection, testing, approval nor acceptance of the work in whole or in part, by the Owner or its agents shall relieve the Contractor or his sureties of full responsibility for materials furnished or work performed not in strict accordance with the Contract.

#### 23. Review by Owner

The Owner and its authorized representatives and agents shall have access to and be permitted to observe and review all work, materials, equipment, payrolls, personnel records, employment conditions, material invoices, and other relevant data and records pertaining to this Contract, provided, however that all instructions and approval with respect to the work will be given to the Contractor only by the Owner through its authorized representatives or agents.

#### 24. Final Inspection

When the Improvements included in this Contract are substantially completed, the Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing that the work will be ready for final inspection on a definite date which shall be stated in the

notice. The Owner will make the arrangements necessary to have final inspection commenced on the date stated in the notice, or as soon thereafter as is practicable.

#### 25. Deduction for Uncorrected Work

If the Owner deems it not expedient to require the Contractor to correct work not done in accordance with the Contract Documents, an equitable deduction from the Contract Price will be made by agreement between the Contractor and the Owner and subject to settlement, in case of dispute, as herein provided.

#### 26. Insurance

- a) The Contractor shall not commence work under this contract until he has obtained all the insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Owner.
- b) Worker's Compensation Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and shall maintain during the life of this contract Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by the State of Texas for all of his employees to be engaged in work at the site of the project under this contract and, in case of any such work sublet, the Contractor shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide Worker's Compensation Insurance for all of the employees to be engaged in such work unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the Contractor's Worker's Compensation Insurance.
- c) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance: including products/completed operation with limits of liability of not less than \$1,000,000/2,000,000 combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage.
- d) Automobile Liability Insurance: including non-owned and hired vehicle coverage limits of liability of not less than: Bodily Injury \$1,000,000 each person, \$1,000,000 each occurrence: Property Damage \$1,000,000 each occurrence, combined limit \$2,000,000.
  - Contractor's Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance and Vehicle Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this contract Contractor's Public Liability Insurance, Contractor's Property Damage Insurance and Vehicle Liability Insurance in the following amounts: \$1,000,000, \$1,000,000, \$1,000,000.
- e) The Sabine River Authority of Texas and Sabine River Authority, State of Louisiana shall be listed as additional insured on all insurance. Provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Sabine River Authority on all policies.
- f) Proof of Insurance: The Contractor shall furnish the Owner with certificates showing the type, amount, class of operations covered, effective dates and date of expiration of policies. Such certificates shall also contain substantially the following statement: "The insurance covered by this certificate will not be canceled or materially altered, except after ten (10) days written notice has been received by the Owner."
- g) Indemnification: The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and the Engineer from any and all claims, causes of actions, and damages of every kind, for injury to or death of any person and damages to property arising out of the construction of said improvements or the operations embraced by this contract or the use of the premises upon which the improvements under this contract are to be constructed, and including acts or omissions of the Owner or the Engineer in connection with said improvements.

#### 27. Warranty of Title

No material, supplies, or equipment to be installed or furnished under this Contract shall be purchased subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale, lease-purchase or other agreement by which an interest is retained by the seller or supplier. The Contractor shall warrant good title to all materials, supplies, and equipment installed or incorporated in the work and upon completion of all work, shall deliver the same together with all improvements and appurtenances constructed or placed by him to the Owner free from any claims, liens, or charges. Neither the Contractor nor any person, firm, or corporation furnishing any material or labor for any work covered by this Contract shall have any right to a lien upon any improvement or appurtenance. Nothing contained

in this paragraph, however, shall defeat or impair the right of persons furnishing materials or labor to recover under any law permitting such persons to look to funds due the Contractor in the hands of the Owner. The provisions of this paragraph shall be inserted in all subcontracts and material contracts and notice of its provisions shall be given to all persons furnishing materials for the work when no formal contract is entered into for such materials.

#### 28. Warranty of Workmanship and Materials

Neither the final certificate of payment nor any provision in the Contract nor partial or entire use of the improvements included in this Contract by the Owner or the public shall constitute an acceptance of work not done in accordance with the Contract or relieve the Contractor of liability in respect to any express warranties or responsibility for faulty materials or workmanship. Furthermore, if any work is found to be defective, the Contractor shall promptly, without cost to Owner and in accordance with the Owner's written instructions, either correct such defective work, or, if it has been rejected by Owner remove it from the site and replace it with non-defective work. The Contractor shall promptly remedy any defects in the work and pay for any damage to other work resulting there from which shall appear within a period of (12) months from the date of final acceptance of the work or as otherwise specified within the technical specifications.

If the Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the defective work corrected or the rejected work removed and replaced, and all direct, indirect and consequential cost of such removal and replacement, including but not limited to fees and charges of architects, engineers, attorneys and other professionals, shall be paid by the Contractor.

#### 29. Equal Employment Opportunity

- a) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or the applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, promotion, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Owner.
- b) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- c) The Contractor will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts for any work covered by this contract so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials.
- d) The Contractor shall take affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions.
- e) Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling their affirmative action obligations.
- f) The Contractor is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority.
- g) The Contractor shall not use the affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

- h) The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts.
- i) Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents.

#### 30. Job Offices

- a) The Contractor and his subcontractors may maintain such office and storage facilities on the site as are necessary for the proper conduct of the work. These shall be located so as to cause no interference to any work to be performed on the site. The Owner shall be consulted with regard to locations. Readily accessible copies of the contract documents shall be kept with the project's superintendent and at such other points on the job as the Owner may designate. Telephone services shall be maintained by the Contractor with an answering machine or answering service for receiving messages from the Owner.
- b) Upon completion of the improvements, or as directed by the Owner, the Contractors shall remove all such temporary structures and facilities from the site and leave the site of the work in the condition required by the Contract.

#### 31. Sanitary Facilities

The Contractor shall furnish, install and maintain ample sanitary facilities for the workmen. As the needs arise, a sufficient number of enclosed temporary toilets shall be conveniently placed as required. Drinking water shall be provided from an approved source, so piped or transported as to keep it safe and fresh and served from single service containers or satisfactory types of sanitary drinking stands or fountains. All such facilities and services shall be furnished in strict accordance with existing and governing health regulations.

#### 32. Partial Use of Site Improvements

- a) The Owner may give notice to the Contractor and place in use those sections of the improvements which have been completed, inspected and can be accepted as complying with the technical specifications and if in its opinion, each such section is reasonably safe, fit, and convenient for the use and accommodation for which it was intended, provided:
- b) The use of such sections of the Improvements shall in no way impede the completion of the remainder of the work by the Contractor.
- The Contractor shall not be responsible for any damages or maintenance costs due directly to the use of such sections.
- d) The period of guarantee stipulated in the Section 28 hereof shall not begin to run until the date of the final acceptance of all work which the Contractor is required to construct under this Contract.

#### 33. Subsurface Information

Prior to bidding, bidders may make their own subsurface investigations under time schedule and arrangements approved in advance by the Owner. The Contractor shall determine to his satisfaction the subsoil conditions and their effect on the required construction and shall complete the work as required without additional cost to the Owner.

# 34. Construction Stakes

The Owner will establish such general reference points and construction stakes as in his judgment will enable the Contractor to proceed with the work. The Contractor will be responsible for the layout of the work from these stakes and will protect and preserve the established reference points and construction stakes and will make no changes or relocations without prior written approval of the Owner. He will report to the Owner whenever any reference point or construction stake is lost or destroyed or requires relocation because of necessary changes in

grades or locations. The Contractor will replace and accurately relocate all reference points and construction stakes so lost, destroyed, or moved.

#### 35. Barricades, Signs and Handling of Traffic

Barricades, signs, and handling of traffic, if required, shall be in accordance with the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices" as adopted by the Texas State Department of Highways and Public Transportation.

The Contractor shall remedy any deficiencies in barricading or traffic control immediately upon notification by the Owner. Prior to construction, the Contractor shall furnish to Owner a list of Contractor's personnel with telephone numbers for notification 24 hours a day, seven days a week. The listed personnel shall have adequate authority to correct barricading or traffic control promptly.

Corrective action must be taken upon verbal notice from the law enforcement agencies, the Texas State Department of Highways and Public Transportation or County Engineer's Office. The Contractor shall, within two (2) hours of actual or attempted notification, have sufficient barricades, lights, and/or other devices to control traffic. Should the Contractor not comply with this notification within two (2) hours, the Owner may place barricades and back charge the Contractor \$250.00 per day per construction site.

#### 36. Location of and Damage to Existing Utilities

The Contractor is responsible for locating underground obstacles. It is not represented that the drawings show all underground obstacles.

The Contractor shall exercise caution to prevent damage to existing facilities during the progress of the construction work, taking care to locate same, where possible, in advance of the actual work. The Engineer will render reasonable assistance to the Contractor in the matter of determining the location of existing utilities by making available such maps, records, and other information as may be accessible to him, when requested to do so, but the accuracy of such information will not be guaranteed.

The Contractor shall make good all damage to existing utilities and/or pipelines resulting from his operations. Should the Contractor, in the layout of his work, encounter any pipe, underground utility, or structure, the location of which has not been furnished to him by the Engineer, he shall bring such conditions to the attention of the Engineer for his determination of the method to be used to remove or bypass such obstructions.

In cases where owners of existing pipelines or underground utilities provide services for locating their facilities, the Contractor shall coordinate the location marking and be responsible for preserving all stakes and markers set for this purpose. The Contractor's responsibility for these markers shall be similar to his responsibility for construction stakes. The Contractor shall save harmless the Owner and the Engineer for any expenses for restoring damaged markers.

#### 37. Sales Tax

This Contract is issued by an organization that qualifies for exemption under the Sales and Use Tax Laws. The Contractor's attention is directed to the State of Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts Limited Sales, Excise and Use Tax for rules and regulations thereto. Tax Exemption Certificates will be furnished by the Owner on request.

# 38. Materials and Workmanship

Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new. No material which has been used by the Contractor for any temporary purpose whatsoever is to be incorporated in the permanent structure without written consent of the Engineer.

Where material or equipment are specified by a trade or brand name, it is not the intention of the Owner to discriminate against an equivalent product of another manufacturer, but rather to set a definite standard of equality or performance and to establish an equitable basis for the evaluation of bids. Where the words "equivalent",

"proper" or "equal to" are used, they shall be understood to mean that the thing referred to shall be proper, the equivalent of, or equal to some other thing, in the opinion or judgment of the Engineer in his sole discretion.

Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be the best of their respective kinds and shall be in all cases fully equivalent to approved samples. Notwithstanding that the words "or equal to" or other such expressions may be used in the specifications in connection with material, manufactured article, or process, the material, article, or process specifically designated shall be used, unless a substitute shall be approved in writing by the Engineer, and the Engineer shall have the right to require the use of such specifically designated material, article or process.

#### 39. Removal of Condemned Work

In the construction of the work contemplated in this contract, the best workmanship, materials and equipment of the grade and make specified shall be used and installed, and to that end, judged by these standards. If any work, equipment or material is found to be imperfect or not in substantial compliance with the provisions of this contract, as interpreted by the Engineer, at any time prior to the acceptance of the entire work done under this contract, notwithstanding that it may have been passed, overlooked, or previously accepted, the Contractor shall, at his own cost and expense, remove it from the premises of the Owner, otherwise dispose of it as directed.

When such condemned work, material or equipment has been removed or disposed of, it shall be replaced by the Contractor at his own cost and expense, in accordance with the plans and specifications to the entire satisfaction of the Engineer. The Owner shall not be compelled nor be under any obligation to retain said condemned work, material or equipment nor any part thereof, nor pay the Contractor even the reasonable value of same. In case the Contractor shall neglect or refuse to remove or replace any condemned work, material or equipment after written notice, within the time designated by the Engineer, such condemned work, material or equipment may be removed or replaced by the Owner and the Contractor hereby agrees to pay for the cost of work so done, or material or equipment so purchased by the Owner.

#### 40. Fitting and Coordination of Work

The Contractor shall do all work that may be necessary to connect the new work with existing improvements in a proper and workmanlike manner. Only such portion of existing improvements shall be removed for new construction as shall be ordered by the Engineer. Any other damage to existing improvements shall be repaired by the Contractor at his own expense. The Contractor shall be responsible for the proper fitting of all work and for the coordination of the operations of all trades, subcontractors, or material suppliers engaged upon this Contract.

# 41. Responsibilities

The Contractor shall be responsible for all materials delivered to him for all parts of the work, including that which has been partially paid for, until final acceptance of the entire work, and shall be liable for all losses or damages thereto which may occur during the progress of construction and before final acceptance. The Contractor shall be required to make good at his own cost any loss, injury or damage which the said materials or work may sustain from any source or cause whatsoever before final acceptance thereof.

The Contractor is required to replace or repair, if necessary, any portion of pavement or other street improvements adjoining his work which may have suffered through his operations, and all adjacent paving or other structures shall be left in a satisfactory and workmanlike condition, at least equal to that existing before the Contractor hereunder started his work.

# SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT

### 1. GENERAL

The provisions of this Section of the specifications shall govern in the event of any conflict between them and the "General Conditions of Agreement".

#### 2. OWNER

The word "Owner" in these specifications shall be understood as referring to the Sabine River Authority of Texas and the Sabine River Authority, State of Louisiana, Burkeville, Texas.

#### 3. ENGINEER

The word "Engineer" in these specifications shall be understood as referring to the Sabine River Authorities Director of Engineering, or such other Engineer, as may be authorized by said Owner to act in any particular position.

#### 4. CONTRACTOR

The word "Contractor" in these specifications shall be understood as denoting the General Contractor/Supplier signing this contract.

# 5. <u>SUBLETTING</u>

The Contractor will not be permitted to assign, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the contract or any portion thereof, or his rights, title or interest therein without the approval of the Owner. The Contractor will not be permitted to sublet any portion of the contract without the approval of the Owner and the Engineer. No sub-contract will, in any case, relieve the Contractor of his responsibility under the contract and bond.

#### 6. TRADE NAMES

Except as specifically specified otherwise, wherever in the specifications an article or class of material is designated by a trade name, or by the name or catalog number of any maker, patentee, manufacturer, or dealer, such designation shall be taken as intending to mean and specify the articles described or another equivalent thereto in quality, finish, and serviceability for the purpose intended as may be determined and judged by the Engineer in his sole discretion.

# 7. <u>MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP</u>

Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new. No material which has been used for any temporary purpose whatsoever is to be incorporated in the project without written consent of the Engineer.

Where material or equipment are specified by a trade or brand name, it is not the intention of the Owner to discriminate against an equivalent product of another manufacturer, but rather to set a definite standard of equality or performance and to establish an equitable basis for the evaluation of bids. Where the words "equivalent", "proper" or "equal to" are use, they shall be understood to mean that the thing referred to shall be proper, the equivalent of, or equal to some other thing, in the opinion or judgement of the Engineer.

Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be the best of their respective kinds and shall be in all cases fully equivalent to approved samples. Notwithstanding that the words "or equal to" or other such expressions may be used in the specifications in connection with material, manufactured article, or process, the material, article, or process specifically designated shall be used, unless a substitute shall be approved in writing by the Engineer, and the Engineer shall have the right to require the use of such specifically designated material, article or process.

#### 8. INDEMNIFICATION

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Sabine River Authority of Texas, Sabine River Authority - State of Louisiana, and the Engineer from any and all claims, causes of actions, and damages for every kind, for injury to or death of any person and damages to property arising out of the construction of said improvements or the operations embraced by this contract or the use of the premises upon which the improvements under this contract are to be constructed, and including acts or omissions of the Owner or the Engineer in connection with said construction.

#### 9. PARTIAL PAYMENTS BY THE OWNER

<u>Progress Payment</u>. Partial payment will be paid for on a monthly basis at the unit price set forth in the bid proposal. Once all of the materials are received by the Owner the final payment will be adjusted accordingly.

At any time upon request, the Contractor shall submit evidence showing payment of his bills for labor, materials, freight, or other expenses on account of the work, and if it should be evident that the Contractor is not making prompt and full payment of his obligations, the Owner may withhold the issuance of payment until such unpaid wages and/or related liquidated damages are remedied.

#### 10. OBSERVATION OF THE MATERIALS

It is agreed by the Supplier that the Engineer shall be and is hereby authorized to appoint from time to time such representatives as the said Owner may deem proper to observe the material furnished under this contract and to see that the said materials furnished are in accordance with the specifications therefore.

#### 11. FINAL ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT

The final payment due the Contractor shall be based on measurements and calculations performed or verified by the Engineer. The final payment due the Contractor shall be the amount calculated for all work performed (plus materials furnished uninstalled if applicable), less all previous payments, less any back charges levied against the Contractor according to the Contract Documents, and less any liquidated damages.

If the Owner should issue the Certificate of Acceptance following the issuance by the Engineer of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, the Engineer shall thereupon proceed to make final measurements and prepare a final statement of the value of all work performed and materials furnished under the terms of the Contract, less a retention of the Engineer's estimated cost of completing the incomplete or unsatisfactory items of work with specified amounts for each incomplete or defective item of work.

#### 13. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Since the actual damages for any delay under this contract are impossible to foresee, the Supplier and his Sureties shall be liable for and shall pay to the Owner the sum of \$300 per day as fixed, agreed and liquidated damages for each calendar day of delay caused from delivery of materials beyond the stipulated contract time.

### 14. PROHIBITION ON BOYCOTTING ISRAEL

In accordance with Section 2270.002 of the Texas Government Code, Contractor hereby represents and warrants that Contractor:

- 1. Does not boycott Israel; and
- 2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of this Contract.

#### 15. PROHIBITION ON BOYCOTTING POWER COMPANIES

In accordance with Section 2274.001 of the Texas Government Code, Contractor hereby represents and warrants that Contractor:

- 1. Does not boycott power companies; and
- 2. Will not boycott power companies during the term of this contract.

# 16. <u>PROHIBITION ON COMPANIES THAT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST FIREARM AND AMMUNITIONN INDUSTRIES</u>

In accordance with Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code, Contractor hereby represents and warrants that Contractor:

- 1. Does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and
- 2. Will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association.

# 17. <u>POSTING OF CERTAIN INFORMATION AT COMMERCIAL BUILDING CONSTRUCTION SITE REQUIRED</u>

In accordance with Section 116.001 of the Texas Government Code, Contractor hereby represents and warrants that Contractor:

1. As soon as practicable after beginning construction of a commercial building project located in this state, the developer of the project shall visibly post the following information at the entrance to the construction site: a) the name and contact information of the developer; and b) a brief description of the project.

#### **AGREEMENT**

THIS AGREEMENT, made this	_ day of	, 20	, by and between the
Sabine River Authority of Texas and	d Sabine River Au	uthority, State o	of Louisiana
, herein called "Owner," acting herein	through <b>David</b>	<b>Montagne</b> its	Executive V.P. and
General Manager (SRA-TX), Warr	ren Founds, III its	Executive Dir	ector (SRA-LA) and
of	, h	ereinafter called	d "Contractor."

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned, to be made and performed by the OWNER, the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees with the OWNER to commence and complete the construction described as follows: **Toledo Bend Project Joint Operation Stone for Rip Rap** hereinafter called the project, for the prices stated in CONTRACTOR'S attached bid proposal dated October 20, 2022 and all extra work in connection therewith, under the terms as stated in the General and Supplementary Conditions of the Contract; and at his own proper cost and expense to furnish all the materials, supplies, machinery, equipment, tools, superintendence, labor, insurance, and other accessories and services necessary to complete the said project in accordance with the conditions and price stated in the Proposal, Bidding Instructions, the General Conditions, and Supplementary Conditions of the Contract, the plans, the specifications, addendum No. 1 and contract documents as prepared by the Owner, all of which are made a part hereof and collectively evidence and constitute the contract.

The Contractor hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date specified in a written "Notice to Proceed" from the OWNER and to fully complete all work for the Contract within <u>60</u> consecutive calendar days, as outlined in the Project Specifications and Information to Bidders. The Contractor further agrees to pay, as liquidated damages, the sum of <u>\$300</u> for each consecutive calendar day that he does not complete the work as required.

The OWNER agrees to pay the CONTRACTOR in current funds for the performance of the contract, subject to additions and deductions, as provided in the General and Supplementary Conditions of the Contract, and to make payments on account thereof as provided in Article 4, "Payments to Contractor" of the General Conditions.

CONTRACTOR hereby verifies that CONTRACTOR does not boycott Israel and Power Companies and will not boycott Israel or Power Companies during the term of this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR hereby verifies that CONTRACTOR does not discriminate against firearm and ammunition industries and not discriminate against firearm and ammunition industries during the term of this Agreement.

(signatures on next page)

(Seal)		
ATTEST:		
(Contractor)		
By: (Signature & Title)		
(Signature & Title)	(Witness)	
Date:		
Sabine River Authority of Texas		
By: David Montagne Executive V.P. & General Manager	(Witness)	
Date:		
Sabine River Authority, State of Lou	iisiana	
By: Warren Founds, III		
Warren Founds, III Executive Director	(Witness)	
Date:		

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to these presents have executed this contract in four (4) counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, in the year and day first above mentioned.

# PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that

(Name of Contractor or Company)
(Address)
<u>Limited Liability Corporation</u> hereinafter called Principal, and (Corporation/Partnership)
(Name of Surety Company)
(Address)
ereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto
(Name of Recipient)
(Recipient's Address)
ereinafter called OWNER, in the penal sum ofDolla
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a certa ontract with the OWNER dated day of, 20, a copy of which is hereto attached a nade a part hereof for the construction of:
(Project Name)

NOW THEREFORE, if the Principal shall well, truly and faithfully perform its duties in all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original term thereof, and any extensions thereof which may be granted by the OWNER, with or without notice to the Surety and during the one-year guaranty period, and if the principal shall satisfy all claims and demands incurred under such contract, and shall fully indemnity and save harmless the OWNER from all costs and damages which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall reimburse and repay the OWNER all outlay and expense which the OWNER may incur in making good any default, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to WORK to be performed thereunder to the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation to this BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR shall abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.

counterparts, each
(Number)
of, 20
(Principal)
<u>(s)</u>
(Surety)
(Attorney in Fact)
•

NOTE: Date of BOND must not be prior to date of Contract. If CONTRACTOR is Partnership, all partners should execute BOND.

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the PROJECT is located.

# PAYMENT BOND

# STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF ORANGE

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That	<u> </u>
County of, and State of	as principal, and
authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to act as surety on bonds for pri	
and firmly bound unto Sabine River Authority of Texas and Sabine River Auth	ority, State of
Louisiana (Owner),	
in the penal sum of (DOLLARS)	(CENTS)
(\$) for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind the	mselves, and their
heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, b	y these presents:
WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written contract with	the Owner, dated
the day of	20 to

# Sabine River Authority of Texas Sabine River Authority, State of Louisiana Stone for Rip Rap RFB #23-001

which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall pay all claimants supplying labor and material to him or a subcontractor in the prosecution of the work provided for in said contract, then, this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect;

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 2253 of the Government Code of Texas as amended and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said Article to the same extent as if it were copied at length herein.

Surety, for value received, stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract, or to the work performed thereunder, or the plans, specifications, or drawings accompanying the same, shall in anyway affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed thereunder.

	of, 20
Principal	Surety
Ву	By
Title	Title
Address	Address
The name and address of the Resident A	